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Director’s Statement

EEHRE

DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of SunCorp Technologies Limited (the
“Company”), | present to you the audited consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of review, the Group mainly engaged in
(i) the processing and trading of used computer-related
components business; (ii) the money lending business;
(iii) the securities brokerage, placing and underwriting
business; and (iv) the clothes and beauty products
business.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
revenue amounted to approximately HK$128.0 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 36.0% as
compared with the revenue of approximately HK$200.0
million in 2021. In relation to the Group’s revenue,
approximately 36.0% results from the processing
and trading of used computer-related components,
approximately 8.6% resulted from interest income
earned from money lending business, approximately
2.1% contributed from securities brokerage, placing
and underwriting business and approximately 53.3%
contributed by clothes and beauty products business.

Gross profit from operation for the year under review
was approximately HK$16.0 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 36.8% as compared with the
gross profit of approximately HK$25.3 million in 2021.
The Group’s net loss for the year was approximately
HK$57.4 million, which was mainly due to the provision
for expected credit loss (“ECL") on trade, other and loan
receivables of approximately HK$40.6 million recognised
during 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, interest income

earned from money lending business was approximately
HK$11.0 million.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

EERE

RAZBRERFIBERFAERAA ([
ARAINES([EE]) g ([E=S
gl)m BTREARRKER
BRrAl(BIAEE)HEE_ZT
ZZHF+ZA=T—HLEFEZE
BRI EHEE-

EHoE

#@@if AEBFEHRE()=

EERAAG I EERE FHEK:
(VMEER: (IVBEHFLL BER
BEELR RiVVREERERERE
%o

HE_ZT-_—_+= H_+—
BHEFE AXEBZ2REHE
128,000,000 L R _T - —&F
2 W 5 \%20000000@%7&HJ\%
36.0% gt AR E 2 W= o)
36.0% REZ=F & “@ﬁﬁ@ﬁ

MBS #18.6% K B N E % HEL
ZHBHWA#HI2.1% BFEFLL
AeE RBIHEBE R &453.3% B
RREEREMEBER -

ElEFTFE2&EEFNHB
16,000,000 0 & -2 - —&F
Z EF#925,300,000 7T iE 4 4
36.8%  AEBEAFEEBEBFE
#) 557,400,000 T I EEMH 75/\
TEIFRARKE SRR
m@W%E&EHﬁWZE%ﬁ
EFEE(BAHEEFBBEYD
40,600,000 JT AT 2K °

BHE_Z-_—_F#+-_A=+—81
FE - BREEBERI AW A
49/11,000,000/% 7T ©



OUTLOOK AND PROSPECT

In view of the highly unpredictable business environment,
we are evaluating different business segments within
the Group and reposition our strategy and business
operation in more optimistic business segments. For the
year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue derived from
our clothes and beauty products segment has declined
by approximately 21.0% from approximately HK$86.3
million to approximately HK$68.2 million as compared
to the year of 2021. The Board expects that the future
development in sales of residential telephones and related
products will be limited and the market will be declined
due to the evolution of technology and the change in
consumer behaviours.

The Group will continue to seek potential investment
and business opportunities for broadening its income
stream and further development of the existing business
segments.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to extend our sincere thanks to our
customers, suppliers and staff for their continued support
and contribution to the Group during the year.

ZHU Yuqi
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023

Director’s Statement

EEHE

Jﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%

ERERRREBREEDN  RMEF
ﬁ$%IWMTH%%“%.I%

RELBNEXEBDERNEFENM
BMHEBEBEEHKEL - BHE_ZT
4+ A=+ —HULEFE K
MERELRERERDIBES ZI
BB T —FTREN21.0% B8
86,300,0007% 7t [% = #£768,200,000
BT EEEHREEAELEH
E%%EWKX%Eﬁ@ aam

ﬁﬁé%ﬁo

AEEBKEBSMEBRERENEK
AMBHBARRLE - HRB
BEBOEL-

&)

AANZRREEZS RORH—
BEP HERH N8 TH N H#HF U
ERFARRNEBIEL ZER -

HITEE
KFH

BFE —_E_=ZF=ZA=t—H

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 23k (3



04

Management Discussion and Analysis
BB R TH

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$128.0 million
which represented a decrease of approximately 36.0% as
compared to the corresponding figure for the year ended
31 December 2021.

The gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2022
was approximately HK$16.0 million as compared to
approximately HK$25.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2021.

During the year, the clothes and beauty products business
continued to contribute a significant percentage to our
revenue. We continue to be optimistic at this business
segment and will capture more market opportunities as
and when appropriate. On the other hand, the sales and
marketing of electronic equipment and related products
was still an important source of income of the Group. In
addition, the financial arm of the Group comprising of
securities brokerage, placing and underwriting business
and money lending business also contributed to the
revenue of the Group during the year. The revenue and
net loss or profit for each business segment for the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out as below:

Used

Telephones computer-

and related related

equipment  components

EER “FEN

HERE HEAY

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Revenue g - 46,148
Net (loss)/profit (BiRZE) /mF (517) (681)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Current ratio BNt X
Gearing ratio (defined as the total BRBEBEE(EER

borrowings divided by total equity)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash on hand
of approximately HK$26.9 million, net current assets
of approximately HK$203.5 million, total assets of
approximately HK$282.2 million and shareholders’ equity
of approximately HK$203.2 million.

The Group generally financed its operations through
internally-generated cash flows and Shareholders’ equity.

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the amount of
the total outstanding loan receivables is HK$101.2 million
with 8-10% interest rate and all loan receivables are
recoverable within 1 year.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the amounts
for the largest borrower and the five largest borrowers
in aggregate are HK$21.8 million and HK$54.6 million,
respectively, accounted for approximately 22% and 54%
of the total loan receivables of the Company.

The Group normally reaches out the target customers
through the Group's reputation in the financial services
industry, the existing business network and the finance
magazine. The Group targets both retail and corporate
customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB R TH

When determining loan tenure, the Group will normally
take into factors including, but not limited to personal
financial background and repayment ability of the
borrowers, internal credit checking results, the borrowers’
repayment record in other financial institutions and,
where applicable, value of the to-be-pledged collateral,
the availability of any guarantee. The Group will base
on the information gathered from the borrowers to
determine the loan tenure.

When determining the interest rate of the loan, the
Group will take reference to the past record of interest
rate used by the Group and market rate for the interest
rate.

In addition, the Group funds the money lending
transaction through our internal resources. As at 31
December 2022, the loan receivables of HK$101 million
will mature on or before 31 December 2023 and loan
receivables were neither secured by collaterals or any
guarantee as at 31 December 2022. As at 31 December
2022, the maturity profile of the loan receivables of
HK$101 million were within twelve months from the
end of the reporting period. The Company has complied
with requirements set out in chapter 14 and/or 14A of
the Listing Rules when it granted the loans to each of
the borrower(s), whose loan(s) was still outstanding as
at 31 December 2022. The Company has not had an
agreement, arrangement, understanding or undertaking
(whether formal or informal and whether express or
implied) with a connected person with respect to the
grant of loans to the borrower(s) whose loan(s) was still
outstanding as at 31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The impairment losses on loan receivables were
approximately HK$38.1 million and HK$68.1 million for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. It was
mainly attributed to the impairment of approximately
HK$62.4 million from Zhongrong International Finance
Company Limited (“Zhongrong”), which was in
liquidation in 2020, for the year ended 31 December
2021 respectively. As Zhongrong was in liquidation in
2020, the Company submitted the proof of debt to the
Official Receiver's office and the provisional liquidator in
accordance with Companies (Winding-up) Rules during
the year of 2021. Zhongrong appointed joint and several
provisional liquidators for its winding up process. Thus,
a fully impairment on Zhongrong's loan was made for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The Company was
of the view that the impairment loss recognised on the
Zhongrong's loan was fair and reasonable.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Authorised share capital

As at 31 December 2022, the authorised share capital
of the Company was HK$600,000,000 divided into
100,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.006 each. The
authorised share capital had no change during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Issued share capital

As at 1 January 2022, the issued share capital of the
Company was HK$8,957,619 divided into 1,492,936,566
shares of HK$0.006 each.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 45,600,000
options were exercised at the exercise price of HK$0.078
per share, resulting in the issuance of 45,600,000 new
shares of HK$0.006 each.

As at 31 December 2022, the issued share capital of the
Company was HK$9,231,219 divided into 1,538,536,566
shares of HK$0.006 each.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB R TH

EXCHANGE RATE

Most of sales in the current year were denominated in
United States dollars, whilst the majority of the Group’s
expenses were denominated in United States dollars,
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Although the Group
currently does not maintain any hedging policy to
hedge against foreign exchange exposure that may arise
from the above transactions, the management team
continuously assesses the foreign currency exposure,
with an aim to minimize the impact of foreign exchange
fluctuation on the Group’s business operations.

RAISING OF FUNDS AND USE OF PROCEEDS

On 23 April 2021, the Company entered into a placing
agreement pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to place through the placing agent, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, on a best
effort basis, up to 580,000,000 placing shares at the
placing price of HK$0.10 per placing share to not less
than six placees who and whose beneficial owners were
independent third parties (the “Placing”). The placing
shares were allotted and issued pursuant to the specific
mandate granted by the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) on 16 July 2021.

The Placing was completed on 2 August 2021. The net
proceeds (after deducting the placing commission and
other related expenses) from the Placing amounted to
approximately HK$56.2 million. The net proceeds were
intended to be used for the further development and
operations of the virtual asset trading platform of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2022, the net proceeds had been
utilised as follows:

BB BT

BA: 2= —
SRIEFHECDBREATHEZ:

/

Utilised amount for

Unutilised amount the yearended  Unutilised amount
as at 31 December 31 December  as at 31 December
2021 2022 2022 Expected timeline for the
R-B=-F REZ-Z-_F RZZZZF  application of the
Use of net proceeds Allocation +=ZA=+-H +=ZB=t+-H +ZA=1+-8  unutilised proceeds
FEREFRAR s FBALE LEEEBASE FBALE HADRAEREZESBARMR
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEET BEET BEET B&ET
Web application development of the virtual asset 18.0 16.4 49 115 By 31 December 2024
trading platform
EREERSTANBREARE RZBZREFZA=+—RZH
Acquisition of equipment and the related installation and 11.0 7.0 - 7.0 By 31 December 2024

technical support services fees

BERGREBRERRITX SRS E

Cloud infrastructure and professional network 8.1 4.1
management services fee

EERFRREXPRERRTE

Staff costs and consultancy fees for operational and 8.4 76
technical staff and external consultants

BRERRIARARSNSEROR IHARBHE

Digital and data securities services fee 24 2.4
UTRABESRBE
Working capital in operating the virtual asset trading 83 8.1

platform, including but not limited to purchasing digital
assets inventories and purchasing insurance

EEERAERSTANEELES REETRINEER
YTAERRREERR

RZE-mE+-A=+—RZH
4.1 - By 31 December 2024

RZFZMF+=A=+-RZA
1.0 6.6 By 31 December 2024

\CEMET-AZT-RZA

12 12 By3 1 December 2024
RZBZME+=A=+-RZA
0.2 7.9 By 31 December 2024

RZZZWE+ZA=+—RZH

Total 56.2 45.6
w3t

114 342

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, total market value for the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL") of the Group was approximately HK$75.0
million (2021: approximately HK$87.3 million). The
Board considers that the investments with market value
accounting for more than 5% of the Group's total assets
as at 31 December 2022 as significant investments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB BT

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recognised unrealised loss on financial assets at FVTPL of
approximately HK$21.5 million (2021: unrealised gain of
approximately HK$16.7 million). For the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group recognised realised gain on
financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$4.8 million
(2021: approximately HK$16,000).

Details of the top financial assets at FVTPL, in terms of
market value as at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Proportion to
the total issued
share capital for

the stocks
Stock name Stock code  No.of shares ERECHTR  Market value
k&R REBRR RAHE  ABHZLAH wE
(HK$000)
(F#1)
WLS Holding Limited 8021 302,640,000 2.11% 20,882
EEZRARAR
SEEC Media Group Ltd 205 14,720,000 2.00% 9,862
HAEREEERAT
China Investment and Finance Group Ltd 1226 11,067,760 2.68% 6,862
TERHEEEARAA
Milan Station Holdings Ltd 1150 32,850,000 3.73% 6,504
ARUERERAA
Wealth Glory Holdings Ltd 8269 34,500,000 3.87% 5,761
FERRERAA
Asia Grocery Distribution Limited 8413 8,020,000 0.69% 3,328
THREBRAA
China Environmental Energy Investment Ltd 986 59,224,000 4.57% 2,961
PERRERREERAA
Sub-total 56,160
Nt
Other 19 listed equity securities (Note 2) 18,814
Eto19% ERRAES (F1:2)
Total 74,974

5t
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Unrealised fair
value loss/

Proportionto  (gain) on the

the total assets investments
of the Group ~ BREMKEER Dividends  Investment
tAEEEEE ATEKRE received  strategy
2l BB/ (k&) BHRE RERH
(HK$000)
(Fi&7x)
7.40% 5,226 - Passive
-
3.50% 2,020 - Passive
- Bl
2.43% (2,878) - Passive
- R
2.30% 2,531 - Passive
- B
2.04% (1,484) - Passive
- EE
1.18% 1,764 - Passive
- R
1.05% (2,428) - Passive
- BB
19.90% 4,751
6.67% 16,768 - Passive
- R
26.57% 21,519



Management Discussion and Analysis

Note:
1. Total assets as at 31 December 2022: HK$282,174,000.
2. As at 31 December 2022, other listed equity securities

comprised 19 listed equity securities and none of them
was more than 1.0% of the total assets of the Group.
The companies of other listed equity securities are listed
in Hong Kong in which they are principally engaged
in steel business, the provision of financial services,
movie & entertainment business, electronic technology,
distribution, properties & construction and retail.

WLS Holdings Limited is a company listed in Hong Kong
in which it and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the provision of scaffolding and fitting out services,
and other services for construction and buildings work,
money lending business, securities brokerage and margin
financing and securities investment business and assets
management business.

SEEC Media Group Limited is a company listed in Hong
Kong in which it and its subsidiaries are engaged in the
provision of advertising agency services, distribution of
books and magazines, securities brokerage business,
money lending business and e-commerce business in the
People’s Republic of China and in Hong Kong.

China Investment and Finance Group Limited is a
company listed in Hong Kong in which it and its
subsidiaries are engaged in securities trading and
investment holding.

Milan Station Holdings Limited is a company listed on
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in which it and its
subsidiaries principally engaged in retailing of handbags,
fashion accessories, embellishments and spa and wellness
products.

BB BT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB R TH

Wealth Glory Holdings Limited is a company listed
in Hong Kong in which it and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the trading of natural resources
and commodities; development and promotion of
brands, design, manufacture and sale of trendy fashion
merchandises and other consumer products; investment
in securities; and money lending business.

Asia Grocery Distribution Limited is a company listed in
Hong Kong in which it and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the food and beverage grocery distribution
business under the authentic and original “Hung Fat Ho"
brand in Hong Kong.

China Environmental Energy Investment Limited is
a company listed in Hong Kong in which it and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design, original
equipment manufacturing, marketing of jewelry business
and money lending business.

Looking forward, the Board will adopt a passive
investment strategy for the investments in securities.
It aims to extract maximum returns from the market
through investment in a diversified portfolio with low
costs and does not involve frequent trading. The Board
believes that the future performance of the listed
investments held by the Group will be volatile and
substantially affected by overall environment, equity
market conditions, investor sentiment and the business
performance and development of the investee companies.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were
no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 18 employees
(31 December 2021: 30), including the executive
Directors. The gender ratio of the Group’s workforce
(including senior management) was approximately 72%
male to approximately 28% female. The Group shall
continue to take into account diversity perspectives
including gender diversity in its hiring of employees from
time to time.

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the
performance of employees with reference to the market
condition. The Board may exercise its discretion to grant
share options to the executive Directors and employees as
an incentive to their contribution to the Group.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
Nil).
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Corporate Information
nEREH

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Yuqi
Mr. CHOW Hei Yin Terry

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAN Yuan
Mr. MA Kin Ling
Ms. HUANG Zhi

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. WONG Sin Fai, Cynthia

AUDITORS

McMillian Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISORS

Hong Kong:

C&T Legal LLP
Bermuda:

Conyers Dill & Pearman

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
HSBC
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Unit 2305, 23/F., The Center
99 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong
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Details of Directors and Chief Executives

EERIETHASHE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. ZHU Yuqi (“Mr. Zhu"), aged 31, is an executive
Director. Mr. Zhu is currently assistant to general manager
of a company located in Shenzhen, the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC").

Mr. CHOW Hei Yin Terry (“Mr. Chow"), aged 45, is
an executive Director. He obtained a Bachelor degree
of Business Administration from Central Queensland
University. Mr. Chow has more than twenty years of
experience in relation to business development and
sales and marketing. He also has extensive experience in
business administration and entrepreneurial management.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chow is a director of
a local company engaging in the trading of Chinese
medicine and Mr. Chow is mainly responsible for the sales
and marketing of the company. Mr. Chow is currently the
vice-president of The Hong Kong Medicine Dealers’ Guild.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. MA Kin Ling (“"Mr. Ma”), aged 40, is an
independent non-executive Director. He obtained a
Bachelor degree of Business Administration (Honours)
in Accountancy and Law from City University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Ma is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ma is currently an
Independent Non-executive Director of Wisdom Wealth
Resources Investment Holding Group Limited (formerly
known as Hong Kong Finance Investment Holding Group
Limited) (HK Stock Code: 007) and a chief financial
officer and company secretary of China Zenith Chemical
Group Limited (formerly known as Xinyang Maojian
Group Limited) (HK Stock Code: 362).

Mr. MAN Yuan (“Mr. Man"), aged 35, is an independent
non-executive Director. He obtained a Bachelor degree in
Marketing from the Inner Mongolia University of Science
& Technology. Mr. Man was the general manager in an
internet company located in Shenzhen, the PRC during
2013 to May 2015.

Ms. HUANG Zhi (“Ms. Huang”), aged 35, is an
independent non-executive Director. She graduated
from Changsha University majoring in communication
engineering. She has over 10 years of management and
business development experience in communication
and electronics industry. Prior to joining our Group, Ms.
Huang had held senior management position in sizable
company in the People’s Republic of China and she
was mainly responsible for strategic planning, business
development and operational management.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of the Company is pleased to present this
Corporate Government Report together with annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to high standards of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The
corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal control,
transparency, independence and accountability to all
Shareholders.

Throughout the financial year of 2022, the Group
had applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) during the period from 1 January 2022 to
31 December 2022; and unless otherwise stated, which in
the opinion of the Board, are not appropriate to follow.

The Company conducts periodic review on its corporate
governance practices to ensure that the Company can
meet the requirements of the CG Code on an on-going
basis. The key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company are summarized as below:

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

The Board is mandated with promoting the success of the
Company by providing leadership and supervising control
of the business of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXRERRE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES
(continued)

As at the date of this report, the Company has the
following members on the Board:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Yuqi
Mr. CHOW Hei Yin Terry

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAN Yuan
Mr. MA Kin Ling
Ms. HUANG Zhi

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on
page 16 of this Annual Report. Under the Listing Rules,
every listed issuer is required to have at least three
independent non-executive directors, at least one of
whom must have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The number of independent non-executive Directors has
met the requirement of the Listing Rules and represented
one-third of the total Board members.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to the requirement of the Listing Rules. The Company is
of the view that all independent non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines. Regular review will be made
on the Board composition to ensure the Company has a
balance of skills, expertise and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Company.

Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to Code Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

(continued)

Continuous Professional Development
(continued)

Up to the date of this report, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development by
attending training course or reading relevant materials
on the topics related to corporate governance and
regulations.

Newly appointed Director will be arranged a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction which
includes provision of key guidelines, documents and
publications relevant to their roles, responsibilities
and ongoing obligations; a briefing on the Company’s
structure, businesses, risk management and other
governance practices and meeting with other fellow
Directors so as to help the newly appointed Directors
familiarize with the management, business and
governance policies and practices of the Company, and
ensure that they have a proper understanding of the
operations and businesses of the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company follows a formal and transparent procedure
for the appointment of new Directors to the Board. The
Board will consider on a regular basis whether necessary
changes are needed in respect of the structure, size
and composition of the Board and to identify suitably
qualified candidates if there is such a need. In accordance
with the existing Bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws”), every newly appointed Director shall hold office
till the next following general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

According to the Bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation at least once every three
years. For the avoidance of doubt, all Directors, including
the Chairman of the Board, shall be subject to retirement
by rotation.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES
(continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.
However, in view of the current nature of the Company,
the Board opines that it is not necessary to appoint a
chairman or chief executive and daily operation of the
Group is delegated to executive Directors, department
heads and various committees.

In this circumstances, the Board considers that the
present practice has already addressed the concerns of
the CG Code in this respect.

NUMBERS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

During the financial year of 2022 under review, 4 board
meetings were held. The attendance records of each
Director at the Board meetings and the annual general
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2022 was
as follows:

Name of Directors BEENA
Mr. ZHU Yugi KRFEHFLE
Mr. CHOW Hei Yin Terry B B
Mr. MAN Yuan W Bl 5 &
Mr. MA Kin Ling SiEERE
Ms. HUANG Zhi EVmJﬁﬁ
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Corporate Governance Report

NUMBERS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE (continued)

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings

The Board conducts meeting on a regular basis and on
an adhoc basis. The Bye-laws allows Board meetings
to be conducted by means of telephones or other
communications equipment and any resolutions to be
passed by way of written resolutions circulated to and
signed by all Directors from time to time when necessary
unless such as are temporarily unable to act through ill-
health or disability.

At least 14 days’ notice for regular Board meetings and
reasonable notice for non-regular Board meetings are
given to all Directors so as to ensure that each of them
had an opportunity to attend the meetings. The company
secretary of the Company (the “"Company Secretary”)
assists the chairman of the Board in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable
rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda
and the accompanying Board papers are sent in full to
all Directors at least 3 days before the date of the Board
meeting.

After the meeting, draft minutes of the Board meeting
are circulated to all Directors for their comment before
execution and approval. All Board minutes are kept by
the Company Secretary and available for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice given by the
Directors. Every Director is entitled to have access to
Board papers and related materials and has access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Board opines that it is not necessary to appoint a
Chairman or Chief Executive and daily operation of the
Group is delegated to executive Directors, department
heads and various committees.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) for
overseeing particular aspect of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with
clearly defined written terms of reference which set out
the scope and authorities of the respective committee.
The terms of reference are available to Shareholders for
inspection on the Company’s website. Copies of minutes
of all meetings and resolutions of the committees, which
are kept by the Company Secretary, are circulated to
all Board members and the committees are required
to report back to the Board on their decision and
recommendations where appropriate.

As at the date of this report, the members of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee are:

Audit Committee

Mr. MA Kin Ling (Chairman)
Mr. MAN Yuan
Ms. HUANG Zhi

Remuneration Committee

Mr. MAN Yuan (Chairman)
Mr. MA Kin Ling

Nomination Committee

Mr. MA Kin Ling (Chairman)
Mr. MAN Yuan
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides an important link between
the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming
within the scope of the audit of the Company. The Audit
Committee was established in March 2000 with written
terms of reference and is currently consists of three
members, of whom all are independent non-executive
Directors.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
appointment of auditors on an annual basis including a
review of the audit scope and the audit fees; ensuring
the objectivity and independence of the auditors,
meeting with the auditors to discuss issues arising from
the final audit and any matters the auditors suggest to
discuss; reviewing the sufficiency and effectiveness of the
risk management and the internal controls; engaging a
professional consultant as the Group’s internal auditor
to discharge the duties of the Group’s internal control
and risk management; reviewing the annual and interim
report in accordance with the accounting policies and
practices and relevant accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and the legal requirements; and serving as a focal
point for communication between other Directors and
the auditors in respect of the duties relating to financial
reporting.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company's policy
when necessary.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

During the financial year of 2022 under review, 2 Audit
Committee meetings were held and the attendance
record of each committee member at the meetings was
as follows:

= (&)

- —FOEMBRFEARN £
S RITTMAEZEZEETEER
rEENEBZERE T

Attendance/

Number of

meetings attended

Name of Audit Committee members EREEEREHSR HER /EXE
Mr. MA Kin Ling (Chairman) BEEE (X/FE) 2/2
Mr. MAN Yuan w Bl 5t A4 2/2
Ms. HUANG Zhi e/ A 2/2

During the committee meetings held in the financial
year of 2022, the Audit Committee performed the work
summarized below:

- Reviewing the financial reports and results
announcement for the following financial period
before submission to the Board for approval:

—  for the year ended 31 December 2021

—  for six months ended 30 June 2022

— Reviewing the auditors’ independence and report
recommending to the Board for the re-appointment
of the external auditors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The financial reports and the results announcement of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 have
been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee,
which was of the opinion that the preparation of such
results complied with the applicable accounting standards
and requirements and that adequate disclosure have been
made.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established for the
purposes of ensuring there are formal and transparent
procedures for setting policies on the remuneration for
the Directors. No Directors and executives can determine
his/her own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
was established in March 2000 with written terms of
reference and is currently consists of two members, of
whom both are independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. MAN Yuan (Chairman) and Mr. MA Kin Ling.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice when necessary.

During the financial year of 2022 under review, a
Remuneration Committee meeting was held and the
attendance record of each committee member at the
meeting was as follows:
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Attendance/

Number of

meetings attended

Name of Remuneration Committee members ¥HHMZEEXNEH B HEE /88 KH
Mr. MAN Yuan i [Bl 5t 4 1/1
Mr. MA Kin Ling BRELE 1/1

The Company has adopted a director remuneration policy,
it sets out the general principles which guide the Group
to deal with the remuneration matters. This remuneration
policy aims to provide a fair market level of remuneration
to retain and motivate high quality directors, senior
management of the Group and attract experienced
people of high calibre to oversee the business and
development of the Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 1 April
2012 with the written terms of reference in compliance
with Code Provision B.3.1 of the CG Code. There are two
members in the Nomination Committee comprising two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. MA
Kin Ling (Chairman) and Mr. MAN Yuan. The principal
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

EEZEE (M)

REZEES
REZBEER-_T——-FHA—
By HEMBRELENTALE
BOASTAIST AR X EB.3. 1R 124
ZECEMEAKEBEMEEILIEN
TEFHRERE (XF)MRESL
E-REZEBGZTIERER/MRE
EZEAEFRTENUNNEFTEES
FMEFSFLERRES-

During the financial year of 2022 under review, a RZEZ_FREVRFEN %
Nomination Committee meeting was held and the BEERTT —RIERZEGEENK
attendance record of each committee member at the EERBgNEZEREFRHENT
meeting was as follows:

Attendance/

Number of

meetings attended

Name of Nomination Committee members REZEEREKS HER B XE
Mr. MAN Yuan m Bl 5 11
Mr. MA Kin Ling BRRETE 1/1

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach
to achieve a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company and also to enhance the quality of performance
of the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointment
will be considered against object criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives as stated in the above. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five
Directors. Three of the Directors are independent non-
executive Directors and independent of management,
thereby promoting critical review and control of the
management process. The Board is also characterized
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of
professional background, gender and skills.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”). The nomination policy sets
out the selection criteria in assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate as Director. Such criteria
include but not limited to academic background,
qualifications, relevant experiences in the industry,
character and integrity of the proposed candidate.
Suitable candidate can be nominated by any Director for
the Nomination Committee’s consideration. Nomination
Committee should evaluate the personal profile of the
candidate based on the selection criteria as set out in
the nomination policy and undertake adequate due
diligence in respect of each proposed candidate. After
comprehensive assessment, the Nomination Committee
will then make appropriate recommendations to the
Board for approval. All appointments of Directors will
ultimately be based on merit while taking into account
the measurable objectives with regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination
Policy and the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis
and discuss any revision that may be required, and
recommends any proposed changes to the Board for
approval. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Nomination Committee has assessed and reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board, as well
as the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee considers that an
appropriate balance of diversity is maintained on the
current Board, which comprises members of both gender
and of different qualifications and experience. The
Nomination Committee has discussed and reviewed the
retirement and re-election of Directors and other relevant
issues.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in
preparing the financial statements of the Group. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022, the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the applicable laws were
complied with. The Directors believe that they have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgment and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable and have ensured the financial
statements are prepared on the going concern basis.
The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditors, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 71
to 79.

Risk Management and Internal Control System

The Board maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system. The internal
control system is designed to provide reasonable
assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial and management
reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Directors have an acknowledgement that it is
responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness which cover
all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Board has engaged external
professional party to review the risk management
and internal control systems which were included the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control, to resolve material internal control defects, the
procedure and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information and the purchasing
and payment cycles and procedures of the business. The
Board will review this on an ongoing basis to ensure an
efficient system is in place.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

The Board is responsible for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. The Board must ensure
that the Company establishes and maintains effective
risk management and internal control systems to meet
the objectives and safe guard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Company.

The Board oversees the Group's overall risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis. At
the same time, the Group endeavors to identify risks,
control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risk management and internal control systems which
are compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) -
Integrated Framework 2013 principles. They are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures in
order to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group has established a risk management policy
which sets out the process of identification, evaluation
and management of the principal risks affecting the
business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and
assessing principal risks within its divisions on a
quarterly basis and establishing mitigation plans to
manage the risks identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing
the Group’s risk management and internal control
activities, attending quarterly meetings with each
division to ensure principal risks are properly
managed, and new or changing risks are identified
and documented.

3. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems.

&R B RRE

BERZE (#)
B TR e AR B AR U (4

)ﬂﬂﬂ

EXSRAERY #RFIRIAE
EEREERABEERFK -ES
GUAERAR AL I ERFE
B R g B B R P B A I R DA‘L
KEFRLREBRREZ AR

7o

EZEREEEASERNZEAR
EBRAMBEESE ITHT@UJECE-E%
AlEREES SRR RARNTE W
@ #E hE 17 199 58 4% AR L B2 45 e o Hﬁﬁ’“é
B R EE G E & F Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO) —#%
AERB_Z-—=ZRA - RFEHEE
BmIEERENREEKREBBEM
5|2 By B B - I O B B E KR AR
PRt IBRIEHEREGIEMIERY
B PR & ©

AEBCEHETRREEEE Bt
AR REEEENE ERR T
HRERE-

1. BHMABESFERN FEL
EIEEFIRE R - BIAT & B
E|LAE IR 2 Al R B o

2. EEERAREEARENAR
EIENAERRE RS B EEPTHY
ixf;% NEREZRRRFE

HEE®E A &E%&EHIE.:E%%E&
By B rE R

3. %%Aﬁakﬁiﬁiﬁt/ﬁ$ﬁl
AREBELEANIPEEHENS
B R FE oMo

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4%

29



30

Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

The risk management framework, coupled with our
internal controls, ensures the risk associated with our
different business units are effectively controlled in line
with the Group's risk appetite.

The Group does not have an internal audit department.
However, the Group has conducted an annual review
on whether it is necessary to set up an internal audit
department. Given the Group’s relatively simple
corporate and operation structure, as opposed to
diverting resources to establish a separate internal
audit department, the Board, as supported by the Audit
Committee, is directly responsible for risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness.

The Group engaged an external consultant, for internal
control and risk management to conduct review on
the internal control system and risk management of
the Group during the year. The review covers certain
procedures on the sales of telephone and related
products, and make recommendations for improving and
strengthening the internal control system. No significant
area of concern that may affect the financial, operational,
compliance, control and risk management of the Group
has been identified.

The Group's risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board has the overall
responsibility to maintain the adequacies of resources,
staff qualifications and experience training programs
and budget of accounting and financial reporting
function and the Board concluded that the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems were in place
and effective.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of
insider information, the Group has adopted a policy on
disclosure of insider information with the aim to ensure
the insiders are abiding by the confidentiality requirement
and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

During the financial year of 2022, the remuneration
paid and payable to the Company’s external auditors,
McMillian Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited were set out
belows:

Services rendered for the Group

Audit services EZRE

There was no non-audit service provided by McMillian
Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited to the Company during
the financial year of 2022.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY AND ANTI-
CORRUPTION POLICY

The Company has established the whistleblowing policy
which allows all employees and independent third
parties, including customers, suppliers and contractors,
to report any possible improprieties, misconducts,
malpractices or irregularities in matters of financial
reporting, internal control or other matters to the Board
or the Audit Committee anonymously. The Group will
handle the reports and complaints with care and will
treat the whistle-blower's concerns fairly and properly.
The Audit Committee has the overall responsibility for
the whistleblowing policy but has delegated day-to-
day responsibility for overseeing and implementing it to
a designated officer. Any person who is found to have
victimized or retaliated against those who have raised
concerns under this policy will subject to disciplinary
sanctions.

The Group has adopted anti-corruption policy on a zero-
tolerance basis for any form of corruption, including
bribery and extortion, fraud and money laundering, and
promise to operate our business in an honest, ethical
and creditable manner. The policies are revised in due
course and all Directors and employees are reminded
with its requirement from time to time. In particular, the
Group has established a code of conduct and stipulated
in the compliance manual of the Company. Additionally,
the Group has implemented an effective internal manual
on inside information or price sensitive information and
has provided separate channels for the reporting of any
suspected business irregularities, fraud and corruption.

Please refer to the “Environmental, Social and

Governance Report” contained in this report for more
details.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG Sin Fai Cynthia (“Ms. Wong") was the
Company Secretary. She is responsible to the Board for
ensuring the board procedures are followed and that the
Board is briefed on legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments. She reports to the Board
directly.

Up to the date of this report, Ms. Wong has undertaken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
She has been contacting with the Board directly in
respect of company secretarial matters.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code"”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transaction. Based on specific enquiry of all the Directors,
the Directors have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code throughout the financial year
of 2022.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with Shareholders and, in particular, use annual general
meetings or other general meetings to communicate with
Shareholders and encourage their participation in such
meetings.

At least twenty (20) clear business days’ notice for annual
general meeting and at least ten (10) clear business
days’ notice for all other general meetings are given to
Shareholders before the meeting.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(continued)

Details of poll voting procedures will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings and any questions from
Shareholders regarding the voting by way of poll will be
answered. Poll results will be posted on the website of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at the date of
the conclusion of the general meeting.

To promote communication, the Company maintains
website at www.suncorptech.com.hk where extensive
information and updates on the Company's business
developments and operations, financial information and
other information are posted. The Company has reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholder’s
communication policy during the year and concluded that
it is effective.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a policy on payment of
dividends in January 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”).
The Dividend Policy aims at enhancing transparency of
the Company and facilitating the members and investors
to make informed investment decisions relating to the
Company.

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Board may take into
account of, among other matters, the following factors
when considering the declaration of interim dividend and
proposing the payment of final dividend for the approval
of Shareholders:

(i) the Group's actual and expected financial
performance;

(i) the Group's expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and futures

expansion plans;

(iii) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Group;
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)
(iv) the Group's liquidity position;

(v) general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the
Group;

(vi) statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

(vii) any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing Shareholders
and potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from
investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to
the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, there is no
significant change in the Company’s memorandum of
association and bye-laws.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholder’s
interest and rights, separate resolutions are proposed
at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors, for
shareholders’ consideration and voting. All resolutions put
forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results
will be posted on the SEHK website and the Company’s
website after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING AND
PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SPECIAL
GENERAL MEETING

Special general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of Shareholders holding not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company or
by such Shareholders who made the requisition (the
“Requisitionist(s)”) (as the case may be) pursuant to
Article 58 of the Bye-Laws. Such requisition must state
the object of business to be transacted at the meeting
and must be signed by the Requisitionists and deposited
at the registered office of the Company or the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong. Such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the Requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in such Bye-Laws for convening a
special general meeting. Shareholders may put forward
proposals at general meeting of the Company by sending
the same to the Company at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests in
respect of their rights to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

On behalf of the Board

ZHU Yuqi
Executive Director

31 March 2023
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG")
Report (the "ESG Report”) covers the Group's overall
performance in the environmental and social aspects
of our business operations in Hong Kong and the PRC
offices from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the
“year” or “2022"), unless otherwise stated.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) which is set out
in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "HKEX") serves as the reporting guidelines of
this ESG Report. The ESG Report has been prepared
based on four reporting principles, including materiality,
guantitativeness, balance and consistency.

Materiality: The ESG Report shall cover the material ESG
factors that are sufficiently important and material to
different stakeholders.

Quantitativeness: The Group shall present quantitative
environmental and social key performance indicators
("KPIs") as well as historical data in the report for
comparison where applicable. Information on the
standards, methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation
tools, and source of conversion factors used for the
reporting of emissions and energy consumption are
mainly referred to the ESG Reporting Guide.

Balance: The ESG Report shall provide an unbiased picture
of the Group’s performance. The ESG Report should avoid
selections, omissions, or presentation formats that may
inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by the
reader.

Consistency: The Group shall adopt consistent
methodologies when preparing the ESG Report and the
environmental and social KPIs to allow for meaningful
comparisons over time. Any changes to the methods used
must be specified in the ESG Report.
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B HEMEAEE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE STRATEGIES

Sustainability is an essential part of the Group’s values.
We are committed to promoting sustainable development
by incorporating the ESG concept into our business
decision-making. In order to preserve the quality of life
for both present and future generations, the Group
strives to reduce its impacts on the environment and
contribute to society through engaging in various charity
activities. Our corporate social responsibility structure is
divided into two main components, the board of directors
(the Board"”) of the Group and an ESG working group.

The Board assumes overall responsibility for ESG
strategy, management, performance and reporting. The
Board provides strategic guidance on our approach to
sustainability and maintains oversight of the Company's
risk management and internal control systems. Reporting
directly to the Board is our senior management, who
are responsible for the detailed monitoring and regular
updating of our ESG performance for further Board
review. The Board and the senior management will review
issues and policies related to the Group's sustainable
development annually and make amendments to the
policies in a timely manner.

The Group has set future strategic goals to enable the
Group to develop a realistic path and focus on the
development direction for achieving its visions. The
progress of implementation and the performance of the
ESG goals and targets should be closely reviewed by the
Group from time to time. If the progress falls short of
expectation or changes of business operations, it may
be necessary to make changes and communicate about
the goals and targets with key stakeholders such as
employees, customers and suppliers.

The ESG working group, which comprises representatives
from various departments, has been established to plan
and coordinate ESG initiatives within the Company.
This working group helps to coordinate the day-to-
day execution of our ESG strategy and is supervised by
members of the senior management.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE STRATEGIES (continued)

A materiality assessment was performed in order to
identify sustainability topics that are material and
relevant to the Group. To identify potential material
topics for disclosure in the Report, the Group took
reference to the ESG Reporting Guide and set possible
topics for assessment. The table below depicted the
Group's material topics. The Group has identified the
key ESG topics which are “relevant” and “important”
to our business. In particular, employment, occupational
health and safety, training and development, product
responsibility and corporate governance are the issues of
the highest priority.
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Aspects Material ESG Issues

FHE EKXESGEE

B. Social Aspect

B. #&F5 |

B1. Employment Employee welfare

B1. B & B EEF
Inclusion and equal opportunities
BENRTERS
Talent attraction and retention
AT 5|

B2. Health and Safety Occupational health and safety

B2.

B3.
B3.

B6.
B6.

2R 2

Development and Training

el

Product Responsibility
EmaE

BEREARE

Development and training

TR R

Customer satisfaction
ERmER

Protection of customer privacy
REZEFILE

B7. Anti-corruption Corporate governance

B7. R &)™ TEER
Anti-corruption
RE&ES

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 23k~ 39



40

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HEMEAEE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS
Emissions

Since the Group’s primary businesses are the sale of
consumer goods and the provision of financial services,
most of our operations are conducted in offices and thus
emissions generated from us are relatively immaterial. As
part of our efforts to minimize greenhouse gas ("“GHG")
emissions, the Group applies energy-saving measures in
the workplace, including the installation of an energy-
efficient lighting system, setting an optimal temperature
for air-conditioning and switching off electrical appliances
after office hours.

During the year, there were no cases in relation to non-
compliance with environmental protection laws and
regulations that had a significant impact on the Group
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Emissions (continued)
Greenhouse Gas Emissions

In 2022, the Group’s total greenhouse gas emissions
were 8.8 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO,-e).
The primary source of greenhouse gas emissions is
“energy indirect” emissions resulting from the generation
of purchased electricity consumed within the workplace
(Scope 2 emissions); and indirect emissions due to the
electricity used for processing fresh water and sewage
made up the remaining portion (Scope 3 emissions). The
Group targets to maintain or reduce the greenhouse gas
emissions level by 2023 with the baseline year in 2022.

Greenhouse gas emissions 2022
BERBHER —E-=
Scope 1 emissions -
& [E18EmW

Scope 2 emissions 8.4
& [E28F W

Scope 3 emissions 0.4
& [E3BE MW

Total greenhouse gas emissions 8.8
R SR ESHE AR Et

Intensity (by floor area) 2.78

mE (REEEENE)

Waste Generation

The Group does not generate any hazardous waste in
its operations. Non-hazardous waste from the Group's
operations was mainly office paper and general office
waste. Office waste is generally gathered at a designated
place as required by the property management office of
the building. It is not feasible for the Group to obtain the
waste production data of these offices. The management
of the Group believes that the portion of non-hazardous
waste is insignificant and thus no reduction targets have
been established.
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RIS BHERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)
Use of Resources

The Group’s core businesses are the processing and
trading of used computer-related components, securities
brokerage, placing and underwriting, money lending and
B2B cross-border e-commerce. Due to the nature of our
business activities, we do not consume a large amount of
resources.

Nonetheless, the Group has formulated a set of policies
and measures to enhance the efficiency of resource
usage, such as energy, water and other materials. For
instance, we encourage our employees to reduce the
usage of papers by adopting internet communication,
assessing the need for printing, applying duplex printing
and reusing single-sided printed papers if possible.

Apart from that, for office stationery procurement, we
give preference to environmental-friendly suppliers who
provide the brand of paper approved by the Programme
for the Endorsement of Forest Certification (“"PEFC").

Energy Use and Efficiency

The Group does not have any business activities that
involve the use of direct energy. Electricity consumption
is the sole contributor to the energy use in our offices. In
2022, the total amount of electricity consumed was 21.5
MWh; and the energy consumption intensity was 0.007
MWh per square feet. The Group targets to maintain
or reduce the energy consumption level by 2023 with a
baseline year in 2022.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)
Use of Resources (continued)

Energy Use and Efficiency (continued)

To improve the energy efficiency of the Group, we
implemented a series of energy-saving measures,
including encouraging the use of electric appliances
with high energy efficiency (Level 1 on Energy Label)
and switching the lighting of the office to more energy-
efficient fluorescent lamps. Employees at offices are
advised to set the air conditioning at 25°C for energy-
saving purposes. For unoccupied rooms, air conditioning
must be switched off. When the offices are partly
occupied, non-essential lighting is switched off.
Employees shall turn off office lights, air conditioners,
printers and computers before leaving.

Direct and indirect energy
consumption by type 2022
REHEINEEREEEFERE —E-C

Direct energy consumption -

HEERBR

Indirect energy consumption 21.5
B4 s IR E 8

Total energy consumption 21.5
RERBEREE

Intensity (by floor area) 0.007

mE (REEEBENE)
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RIS BHERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)
Use of Resources (continued)

Water Use and Efficiency

The Group’s business operations do not involve any
water-intensive activities and our offices only consume an
insignificant amount of water. In 2022, the total amount
of water used was 12.4 cubic meters; and the water
consumption intensity was 0.004 cubic meter (“m3") per
square foot of floor area. The daily water consumption
is mainly supplied by the municipal water network and
the Group did not encounter any issues in sourcing water
during the year.

While the Group has not set any targets for water
consumption reduction due to its minimal impacts,
the Group nonetheless promotes reasonable water
use initiatives and water saving measures among its
employees. We will continue to monitor our water
consumption and search for areas of improvement in
water efficiency in the future.

Water consumption in total and

intensity 2022
AABBREE S ES
Total water consumption 12.4

RKEE

Intensity (by floor area) 0.004

ZE (REE@BEHHE)
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)
Use of Resources (continued)

Packaging Materials

The Group only uses a small amount of packaging
materials, i.e. cartons, in its primary businesses. In 2022,
the total amount of packaging materials used for finished
products was 0.65 tonnes.

Packaging material for

finished products 2022
B m Pt A B &R —ZE-C
Total packaging material used 0.65
FTANBEMHEE

Intensity (by floor area) 0.21

TE (REEEBEAE)

The Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of our businesses, the Group's activities
do not have significant impacts on the environment
and natural resources. However, to minimize possible
environmental impacts related to our activities, products
and services, the Group shall:

e identify significant impacts on the environment and
natural resources from our operations and set targets
to reduce associated stress;

e prevent pollution, reduce waste and minimize
resource consumption for all daily operations;

e comply with relevant laws and requirements
which relate to the Company and its subsidiaries’
environmental aspects; and

e educate, train and motivate our employees to
develop a sustainable mentality that enables them to
conduct business activities in a responsible manner.
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RE -HEMERRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued) RIBLE ()
Climate Change RIRE1t
Climate change is one of the major environmental RIR S R F R F ZIRFHE

challenges in recent years. As our major business Z—BHREMOFTEZKLEL
operation does not involve the manufacturing process, T REEB/RE BRHBEMOES
the impacts on climate change caused by our business LEHRKETCOEELTEKR-
operation are not significant. Although climate change HARBELEITEEELERM
will not affect our business operation directly, the Group MEKESL BERAKBDBRAORA
is committed to reducing greenhouse gas emissions DBRERBHERR WA E A E N
and transiting to a greener office. The table below NEBRE - TRBETRIKZE(L A8

demonstrated the possible risks of climate change. 5 2R ) @ B o

Acute Risks — Intense Extreme Weather Events

SUERER-ZENBRKRRXAEH

Employee The personal safety of the employees may be affected by the extreme
weather during commuting. The collapse of trees or landslides may
cause personal injuries.

== ERAET BEENAFLZEAREXINHEBRARNZE B ARKE
R ILEEE K AR ENA TGS -

Business Operation Adverse weather, such as heavy rain, rainstorms or typhoons, may
reduce productivity or suspend the business operation of the offices.
The transportation difficulties and potential disruption to the supply
chain may lower the service quality and customer satisfaction level.

XBEE BEHNRR (WAR ZNABRA)TEERELEENHEERIER
X EFE-EHRNANHEENEETHUEERERBRERERP
mEE

Mitigation Measures The Group would follow the guideline on the working arrangements

set by local governments on adverse weather conditions and implement
emergency actions according to the actual situation.

= R 1R e REBGERERL T BA®ENES XRRGH T IIEL BRI LR E
ERBRERESITH -
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SOCIAL ASPECT

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

The Group advocates for a communal spirit that thrives
on mutual respect and equal opportunities. The Group
strictly complies with laws and regulations related to
equal opportunities, including but not limited to the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480, the law
of Hong Kong), Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602,
the law of Hong Kong), Disability Ordinance (Cap. 487,
the law of Hong Kong) and Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance (Cap. 527, the law of Hong Kong). There
were no material non-compliance cases with laws
and regulations in respect of employment and labour
standards in the operating locations for the year.

To ensure diversity and equality, our selection process is
non-discriminatory and solely based on the employees’
performance, experience and skills. Our employees
are also encouraged to discuss their targets in job
advancement and career development with the senior
management.

To attract, develop and retain qualified employees, the
Group is committed to offering professional development
opportunities and a healthy working environment for all
employees. Meanwhile, any appointment, promotion or
termination of the employment contract would be based
on reasonable, lawful grounds and internal policies, such
as the staff handbook. The Group strictly prohibits any
kind of unfair or unreasonable dismissals.

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the
performance of employees with reference to the market
condition. Salaries and wage rates are usually subjected
to an annual review that is based on performance
appraisals and other relevant factors. The Group
provides equal opportunities for all employees along
with competitive remuneration and strongly encourages
internal promotion.
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RIS BHERRE

SOCIAL ASPECT (continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Employment (continued)

For the purpose of ensuring there are formal and
transparent procedures for setting policies on
remuneration for the Directors, the Remuneration
Committee was established.

The Group also reviews the compensation and benefits
programmes regularly to ensure its compensation and
benefits packages remain competitive. Over the years, the
Group has introduced a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) by which the Board may exercise
its discretion to grant share options to Directors and
employees as an incentive for their contribution to the
Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total
of 16 employees, including operational office, sales and
marketing, finance, company secretarial and securities
brokerage divisions. For detailed breakdown of the
number of employees and employee turnover rate, please
refer to the “Summary Of Key Performance Indicators”
section.

Number of Employee By Gender
BRUEBESETIAH

B Female = Male
peqid S5M
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SOCIAL ASPECT (continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Employment (continued)

The Group will continue to provide a well-structured and
caring environment for employees to enhance their sense
of belonging as well as work effectiveness.

Health and Safety

The Group recognizes the importance of maintaining a
safe, effective and congenial work environment for our
staff. Hence, the Group has put various occupational
health and safety measures in place and regularly
performs checks on the work environment and staff
facilities. For example, we have taken ergonomic
principles into consideration when designing the
workstation to accommodate the body features and
limitations of users.

The outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19)
was the largest challenge for the health authorities in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group has a set of
policies to protect our staff:

e Regular disinfection of all public areas would be
performed,;

e Medical masks and disinfection supplies are provided
to all staff;

e Each staff are required to report their health status
every day; and

e The Department Heads are requested to monitor the
health status of its staff and report if there are any
health issues on a timely basis.
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RIS BHERRE

SOCIAL ASPECT (continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Health and Safety (continued)

During the past three years, including 2022, the Group
did not record any accidents that resulted in death or
serious physical injury and did not identify any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations relevant to the
health and safety of employees, including but not limited
to Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509,
the law of Hong Kong) and Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Cap. 282, the law of Hong Kong).

Number of work-related fatalities — BE T/EBZRILT AR
Rate of work-related fatalities TERBESE TR
Lost days due to work injury AIEmELNITERE

Development and Training

The Group understands that human capital plays a
substantial part of the business. As a listed corporation,
the Group is mindful of the continuous development
of the regulatory environment and has established a
practice of gathering the changes in regulations and
ensuring its Directors, responsible officers, licensed
representatives and other employees attend necessary
training programmes. Pursuant to the requirement of
Listing Rules, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending training courses
or reading relevant materials relating to corporate
governance and regulations to consolidate their
knowledge and skills.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL ASPECT (continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Development and Training (continued)

Number of trained employees

ZHNEEAR

Percentage of total employees trained

XilwEE

BABB DL

By gender Female

1% Rl el
Male
B

By level Management

o S EEE
Middle
&
Junior
2B

Average training hours completed

5T B B9 F 39 3% 3 B

Average training hours per employee
B g 88 F 915 3R

By gender Female
gkl 7

Male

S
Management
EIRE
Middle

a3

Junior

EE

By level
g Sl

2022
—E-=

39%

29%

71%

71%

29%

0%

2022

—E-—C—F

1.7

3.0

1.2

1.3

2.5

0.0

RIE-HEMERKRSE

tEHE (&)
EBRREIER (&)
FRERIEI (&)
2021 Unit
—E-—-F Efu
23% %
29% %
71% %
71% %
29% %
0% %
2021 Unit
—E-—-F Efu
1.0  hour/employee
ANV
1.5  hour/employee
N BE
0.8  hour/employee
NNEEE
1.3 hour/employee
ANV
1.0 hour/employee
N BE
0  hour/employee
NEEE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HEMEAEE

SOCIAL ASPECT (continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Labour Standards

The Employment of Children Regulations and Employment
Ordinance prohibits all employers from engaging child
and forced labour in the workforce, and regulates the
hours of work and general conditions of employment
of young persons in industrial undertakings. With
compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the Group
does not engage in any forced or child labour. The Staff
Code of Conduct is enclosed in the Compliance Manual,
which is readily accessible to all employees.

In order to prevent the illegal use of child or forced
labour, the human resource department of the Group
requires candidates to provide effective identification
certification before confirmation of employment to
ensure they can be employed according to the law. If
there are any irregularities in forced labour, child labour
and illegal immigrant labour on staff, employment with
all these candidates will be immediately terminated. The
Group would also take responsibility for the investigation.

In compliance with the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57

of the Laws of Hong Kong), no child or forced labour was
employed in the Group's operations during the year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OPERATING PRACTICES AND SOCIAL
INVESTMENT

Supply Chain Management

Managing a sustainable supply chain is essential for the
Group to minimise the adverse impact brought to the
environment and society. To comply with the laws and
regulations, the Group has established stringent internal
controls for procuring goods and materials through
a fair and unbiased tender process. The selection of
subcontractors and suppliers is based on their fulfilment
of specifications, standards, product and service quality
as well as associated support services.

The Group carefully selects qualified suppliers to
ensure that the entire production process is in line
with corresponding standards and rules. The Group
not only requests its new suppliers to submit a review
of all relevant documents but also conducts rigorous
checks to assess their reliability. The Group also carries
out inspections and assessments regularly to review
our suppliers’ standards and terminates collaboration
with unqualified suppliers. Supply chain partners whose
accreditation or production method fall short of our
required environmental and social standards will be
suspended.

Also, the Group maintains close communication with
various suppliers to ensure that the suppliers’ businesses
comply with environmental and social laws and
regulations in their operating countries and regions. The
Group operates in a good faith by adhering to its business
ethics such as the prohibition of employing child and
forcing labour, maintaining high levels of quality control
and environmental and social responsibilities. The Group
conducts interviews with suppliers on environmental
pollution and corresponding measures to deal with
pollution. The Group would make careful decisions based
on the following criteria: number of sustainable practices
in their operation and presence of environmental-related
qualifications on their products or services.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Rig-HEMERKRE

OPERATING PRACTICES AND SOCIAL
INVESTMENT (continued)

Supply Chain Management (continued)

LEBIRHEERE (B)

HEEEE (&)

Supplier Distribution by Geographical Region
RiBEEHRE D NWEEE D B

1, 9%

10,91%

Product Responsibility

The Group recognises that good customer and after-sales
services are the keys to the success of our business. In
order to respond promptly to the needs of our customers,
the Group set up a series of communication channels
among different business units to handle customers’
queries. There were no cases of product recall nor
complaints received against our services or products due
to health and safety issues during the year.

The Group is committed to compliance with relevant laws
of intellectual property rights (“IP rights”) by valuing
and protecting its intellectual properties through patent
fees and periodic trademark renewals.

The Group also emphasises the importance of protecting
and safeguarding customers’ privacy, especially for money
lenders’ information. In compliance with provisions of
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, we are cautious
with the collection, handling and usage of customers’
personal data. Any unauthorised access, disclosure or use
of the information will be subject to disciplinary actions
including termination and legal action.

The Group did not have any material non-compliance
with applicable laws and regulations regarding health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters related
to services offered during the year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OPERATING PRACTICES AND SOCIAL
INVESTMENT (continued)

Anti-Corruption

The Group upholds high standards of integrity and does
not condone any unethical behaviour in our business.
Employees are prohibited to request, receive or accept
any form of benefit from any persons, company or
organization which have business transactions with the
Group. All staff members are reminded to avoid situations
that may lead to or involve any conflict of interest.

To effectively monitor market misconduct such as staff
dealing, money laundering and insider trading, the Group
has set up a series of policies detailed in the Compliance
Manual which is readily accessible to all employees.

In particular, the Group has established a Code of
Conduct and stipulated in the Compliance Manual.
The Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC") has
published the Guideline on Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Financing of Terrorism which summarises what
money laundering and terrorist financing are and what
the legislation requires. The Guideline also explains the
procedures of internal control which the SFC expects
to be followed by the registered person in a range of
areas. The management does not tolerate corruption,
bribery, extortion, money laundering and other fraudulent
activities in connection with any of the business
operations.

Additionally, the Group has implemented an effective
Internal Manual on inside information or price-sensitive
information and has provided separate channels for the
reporting of any suspected business irregularities, fraud
and corruption.

The Group established the internal Whistleblowing Policy
to encourage all our employees who have concerns about
any suspected misconduct or malpractice within the
Group to raise up those concerns with the management.
The Audit Committee of the Group has the overall
responsibility for the Whistleblowing Policy but has
delegated day-to-day responsibility for overseeing and
implementing it to a designated officer.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HEMEAEE

OPERATING PRACTICES AND SOCIAL
INVESTMENT (continued)

Anti-Corruption (continued)

The Group respects confidentiality and takes the
reporting cases seriously and will make every effort to
keep the identity confidential, it is preferred that these
reports not be made anonymously. The designated officer
shall monitor and report the status, findings, results of
the investigation and corrective actions taken to resolve
the misconduct or malpractice to the Management and
the Audit Committee confidentially. The Audit Committee
will report misconduct or malpractice to the Board at
least annually.

During the year, the Group did not organize anti-
corruption training due to COVID-19 and will arrange
the training sessions for both directors and employees
if needed. There was no incident of corruption or non-
compliance in relation to corruption or money laundering-
related laws and regulations, such as the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
and other national or regional laws and regulations
during the year.

Community Investment

In order to become a more responsible business
and create a better living environment for the local
community, the Group is committed to continuously
providing sponsorships and donations to various
charitable organisations in the coming years.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HEMERRSE

SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE FARENEERE
INDICATORS
Key Environmental Performance Indicators' 2022 2021 Unit
BRRREANER B ZBZ-F  BEf
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEHA:HEBY
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
Al2 BERBRAURERBE
Scope 1 emissions - - tonnes C0,-e
LENE-3¢) —AlkiRES
Scope 2 emissions 8.4 8.0 tonnes C0,-e
E2H R Ty
Scope 3 emissions 0.4 0.5  tonnes CO,-e
LEkE 3587 H_alREE
Total greenhouse gas emissions 8.8 8.5  tonnes CO,-e
RERBEINE 8 ltREE
Intensity (by floor area) 2.78 2.68 tonnes CO,-efsq. ft.
TE (RREEEAE) ﬂkﬁzi/ﬁﬁﬁR
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EHA2 . ERFER
A2.1 Direct and indirect energy consumption by type
A2 BRERHSNERRBEERERE
Direct energy consumption - - G
ERRRAER ik
Indirect energy consumption 215 215 MWh
A& R KB
Total energy consumption 215 215 MWh-e
RREERE kEBEEE
Intensity (by floor area) 0.007 0.007  MWh-e/sq. ft.
TR (RREEEAE) KEREE/ FAER
A2.2  Water consumption in total and intensity
A2.2 RkBEBREE
Total water consumption 12.4 120 md
Rk@s VA
Intensity (by floor area) 0.004 0.004  misq. ft.
RE (RREEEAE) UHKR/FRER
A2.5 Packaging material used for finished products
A25 HmRNEREMA
Total packaging material used 0.65 0.67  tonnes
ANBEMHES ]
Intensity (by floor area) 0.21 0.21  kg/sq. ft.
TE (RREEEAE) Fr/FHER

The methodology adopted for reporting on the !
environmental data set out above was based on

Prepare an ESG Report? -
on Environmental KPIs”

issued by the HKEX.

WE FMRBEIEBRERNT AT
ERBBB M [0 47 &
ESGHRE? ek — RBEBEHRE
BIEIZRE®IES! ] -

“How to
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -HEMERRSE

SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE FERENEERE (&)
INDICATORS (continued)
Social Aspects? 2022 2021 Unit
& m? ZBZZF ZEBZ-F  Bf
Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1: &R
B1.1 Total workforce
B1.1 EI&H
Total number of employees 18 30 employee
BI#E% BT
By gender Female 5 10 employee
BRI D i BT
Male 13 20 employee
St BT
By employment type Full-time 18 30 employee
RERELES g3 BT
Part-time 0 0  employee
Pl BT
By age group 30 years old or below 2 3 employee
RERARE D 30m AT BT
31-45 years old 10 23 employee
31-455% BT
46-60 years old 6 4 employee
46-6075% BT
Over 60 years old 0 0  employee
6057 A | BT
By level Management 8 8  employee
Gl Ba) BEE BT
Middle 8 21 employee
i BT
Junior 2 1 employee
EE BT
By geographical region Hong Kong 7 5  employee
BHBEEREES BB BT
China " 25  employee
i BT

2 The methodology adopted for reporting on the social data 2 WE LTS EBEARANAED

set out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG AERNEBBBIME ML [0 4R
Report? — Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs" ESGHE? — M=+t 2 BERBRE
issued by the HKEX. WAERERIES]]
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HEMERRSE

SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS (continued)

Social Aspects?
HEEE
B1.2 Employee turnover rate

B1.2 [EER%=

EREREERE (80

2022 2021 Unit
—g-=f —¥=-F Efi

Total employee turnover rate 6% 3% %
EERRAE
By gender Female 0% 0% %
BRI RIE D g
Male 8% 5% %
B
By employment type Full-time 6% 3% %
RERELES g3
Part-time - - %
il
By age group 30 years old or below 0% 0% %
RERERE D 30B AT
31-45 years old 0% 0% %
31-455%
46-60 years old 17% 25% %
46-607%
Over 60 years old - - %
607% A £
By level Management 0% 0% %
ERAIES ERE
Middle 13% 5% %
i
Junior 0% 0% %
EE
By geographical region Hong Kong 14% 20% %
RiEEEE S £
China 0% 0% %
e
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2:#EHEZ2
B2.1 Number of work-related fatalities 0 0 no.
B2.1 EIKBERTAH AH
Rate of work-related fatalities 0% 0% %
AIEBEERTHEY
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury 0 0 day
B22 RIGMEXANIFAH H
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -HEMERRSE

SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE HRENEERE (#)
INDICATORS (continued)

Social Aspects? 2022 2021 Unit

I EEm TE--F -—B--f Bf

Aspect B3: Development and Training
BEB3  BERE

B3.1 Percentage of trained employees
B3.1 HIMNEEEIL

Total number of trained employees 7 7 employee
XAleEERAL EE
Percentage of total employees trained 39% 23% %
RilNEERABAD L
By gender Female 29% 29% %
RIERIED peid
Male 71% M% %
B
By level Management 71% % %
BR5E D BEE
Middle 29% 29% %
hE
Junior 0% 0% %
£E

B3.2 Average training hours completed

B3.2 RHHFIEIEH

Training hours per employee 1.7 1.0 hour/employee
Bl S EI/EE & /BB
By gender Female 3.0 1.5 hour/employee
BIL5IE D g3 N /BB
Male 1.2 0.8 hour/employee
Bt NGB B
By level Management 1.3 1.3 hour/employee
BRAED ERE e /BB
Middle 2.5 1.3 hour/employee
E N /BB
Junior 0.0 0.0  hour/employee
EE NGB B

60  SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED $7RERI AR A B



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HEMERRSE

SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE HRENEERE (#)
INDICATORS (continued)

Social Aspects?
HEEE

2022 2021 Unit
—g-=f —¥=-F Efi

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

EEBS: iEHEERE

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region
B5.1 RHEEHAINHEEHHE

Total number of suppliers 1 11 supplier
HERRE e
By geographical region Hong Kong 10 10 supplier
iR R E S e R
China 1 T supplier
B HER
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
EEB6  ERMEE
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls 0% 0% %
B6.1 AEMNERLEMAHEAREENEIL
B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints
received 0 0 no.
B6.2 WINEERMBRBEAENRFHUE e
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EEB7:RES
B7.1  Number of concluded legal cases regarding corruption 0 0 case
B7.1 EEANRESHBEIZRAFHYE =¥
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Directors of the Company present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and is
also engaged in treasury functions. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the processing and trading of
used computer-related components such as integrated
circuit chips, hard-disk and motherboards from developed
countries to developing countries. During the year of
review, the Group also engaged in providing money
lending business; securities brokerage and underwriting
business; and sales of clothes and beauty products
business.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on pages 80
to 81 of this report. The Directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December
2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2022, the Group had a decrease of
approximately 36.0% in revenue as compared to the
corresponding figure for 2021. Information relating
to the financial performance and fair review of the
Group business is set out in the section of "Director’s
Statement” and the section of “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

On the corporate level, the Group complies with the
requirements under the Companies Ordinance, Cap.
622 of the laws of Hong Kong, the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Cap. 571 of the laws of Hong Kong for, among other
things, the disclosure of information and corporate
governance, and the Group has adopted the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

A discussion on the Group's prospects is provided in
the Director’s Statement on pages 2 to 3 of this annual
report. Description of principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group is facing is provided in the corporate
governance report on pages 17 to 36 of this annual
report while the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group can be found in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, discussions
on the Group’s compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group,
relationships with its key stakeholders and environmental
policies are contained in the corporate governance report
and environmental, social and governance report on
pages 37 to 61 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past financial years is set out on page 200
of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 81% of the revenue of
the Group and the largest customer accounted for
approximately 34% of the revenue of the Group while
the five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 76% of the purchases of the Group and
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 32% of
the purchases of the Group.

Directors’ Report
EEERE
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
(continued)

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate
of a Director (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) or
a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) have an interest in any of the Group's
largest customer or the largest supplier.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

There was no addition on property, plant and equipment
during the year ended 31 December 2022. Details of
movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share
capital of the Company are set out in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Yuqi
Mr. CHOW Hei Yin Terry

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAN Yuan
Mr. MA Kin Ling
Ms. HUANG Zhi
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Clauses 87(1) and 87(2) of the
Company’'s Bye-laws, Mr. ZHU Yuqi and Ms. HUANG Zhi
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The term of office for each of the Director is the period
from the date of last re-election or last appointment
up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company's Bye laws.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Report
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BARRQR 2 ARIHAIE.7(1) &87(2)
B KRFFRERER/NABRA
BRITZBREBAFAS EHESEER -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short
positions of the Directors, chief executive and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Long Position

Ordinary shares of HK$0.006 each of the Company

EERFTETHRABZRMOE
=

R—_BE-_—_#F#+-_A=+—8" %
EFETBRABRESEZHEA
THEARRERERABEZEE(EER
BEBEPIESTNEEFFRBEKD
([BHFREBEMFEH])EXVE) KR
- HEROEEZED HEBEEARL
BRIBEES KB GG E3521F
FIFEvExcMeEZR AR X
BEBIES EMARL ([ LEHR
Bl EE+ S EMBETAES
ETESFRINEESTR ([EEST
Al MBITEMNARR KRB Z
B MABWT

A

KRG A EEO0.0068 T2 Z
B

No. of
underlying
shares held
in options
granted under
the Share Percentage
Option Scheme of the issued
RIEERESE  share capital of
No. of shares FH2BRE  the Company
held MEEZEB GERARASHT
Name of directors EEgE FisROEA RHEE BRAzBZD L
CHOW Hei Yin Terry B E - 6,304,000 0.41%
HUANG Zhi =9 = 6,304,000 0.41%
Note: The percentage shareholding is based on 1,538,536,566 Wit ZREBSLETIERER_-ZE

shares in issue as at 31 December 2022.
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SHARE OPTIONS

On 4 May 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) at annual general
meeting, under which the Directors may, at their discretion,
grant share options to eligible persons including Directors,
employees and consultants to subscribe for share of the
Company.

On 23 December 2021, a new share option scheme
(the "2021 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted and
the 2012 Share Option Scheme was terminated by the
Shareholders at special general meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 45,600,000
options were exercised with the exercise price of
HK$0.078 and 22,863,000 options were lapsed under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme. The weighted average
closing price of the shares immediately before the dates
on which the options were exercised was HK$0.345. As
at 31 December 2022, there were 63,040,000 options
outstanding under the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

Since the date of adoption of the 2021 Share Option
Scheme and up to 31 December 2022, no share option
was granted, exercised, outstanding, cancelled or lapsed
under the 2021 Share Option Scheme.

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Report
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FE BE_S-_FERESE
45,600,000f7 B IR E 2 1T E (17
¥ {8 50.078% 7 ) &22,863,00017
BRECEABT -REEZHERER
TEBHAROMEFHKTE
B0345B T - M_TE-_—_F+—_HA
=t+t—B RBE_T - _FHERE
=t &l 63,040,00017 B8 P& #E 15 K 17
1 o
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F5 e o
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VMERZH NEEEAEBWE
ZANYNCIE RS O h7N - Dol S A
RERE M M af o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3R~ 67



08

Directors’ Report
EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the Directors were not aware
of any persons or entities (other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company) who/which had or
were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares, which were required
to be recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
under section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Worldwide Technology Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, provided the cash advance
to its director for facilitating the purchase of goods from
suppliers. The director was regarded as a connected
person of the Company. As at 31 December 2022,
Worldwide Technology Limited had an amount due from
its director up to approximately HK$3,170,000.

Details of the connected transaction was set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 5 November 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has no reserve available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 December 2022. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, a Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus, if: (a) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (b) the realisable value of the Company's assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium accounts.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
is set up by the Remuneration Committee on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
The emoluments of the Directors are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted the 2021 Share Option
Scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible
employees of the Company, details of which are set out
in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Report
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

AUDITOR

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited have indicated
their willingness to accept re-appointment as the auditors
of the Company. A resolution for the re-appointment
of McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited as the
auditors of the Company for the ensuing year will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
ZHU Yuqi
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Suncorp Technologies Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
80 to 199, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS HRETTEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our BREFEFEABRERMOEEH
professional judgement, were of most significance in W BRMRBEAHEETBRE
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of WENRAEENEH - ELEFH
the current period. These matters were addressed in EEBRMEBABERBEEMBTRER

the context of our audit of the consolidated financial TEERNETEEN -BMTE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion HettEzBHREHEERAER -EF5H

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on AR BB EFEA:
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL") of trade 1. BUESEFEREEEER(IA

receivables. HEEEE| ) BiE-
2. Allowance for ECL of loan receivables. 2. BWERZEREEBERE-
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BEETEE BN ETNMEEREETSE

Allowance for ECL of trade receivables

BUE G R BRI EEERERE

Refer to notes 6(c) and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
BR2HEEE M IERRMFE6(C) F23 -

The Group had trade receivables of approximately Our procedures in relation to management's
HK$52,278,000, net of allowance for ECL of allowance for ECL assessment of the trade

approximately HK$905,000. receivables included:
SEEEHEARWE HENLS52,278,0008 T HMEBAEEEHRNESRRBHREEEEE
k78 B {E B B B B 49905,00078 7T ° (RIS IR

e Obtaining an understanding of and
evaluating the Group’s credit policies;
e TEHEFE ESEEMNEEBRK:

e Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing
profile of the trade receivables to the
underlying financial records and post
year-end settlements to bank receipts;

e HMEREBEMMBEILHFANNERE SRR
BRiRBEARFAEBRNBITERERE:
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Key audit matter

BARETER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBFTNNEERARESSE

Allowance for ECL of trade receivables (continued)

BUKEZRAFBREEBRZE (&)

Management performed periodic assessment
on the recoverability of the trade receivables
and the sufficiency of provision for allowance
for ECL based on information including credit
profile of different customers, ageing of the
trade receivables, historical settlement records,
subsequent settlement status, expected timing
and amount of realisation of outstanding
balances, and on-going trading relationships
with the relevant customers. Management also
considered forward-looking information that
may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the
allowance for ECL.
ERERBITRAZFONGEEMRL BRE SR
T ERE  BEAEERS BEEEIRR EH
RRALAERERERCEREBBE SO
BRHMWEZENERWE Z BRI E M
MEtiRTEHIEEBREEEN T 2 L ETTE ST
H-BERENERBARTYETRFEERERS
EREENHATRE M B R A TRHBREE BB &
e

We focus on this area due to the allowance for
ECL of trade receivables under the ECL model
involved the use of significant management
judgements and estimates.
BMAILSERDAENEREEEREXTH
BRESEREHREEEEREIRFERAEX
IR E A R Ah AT e

Inquiring of management for the status
of each of the material trade receivables
past due as at year end and corroborating
explanations from management with
supporting evidence, such as understanding
on-going business relationship with the
customers based on trade records, checking
historical and subsequent settlement records
of and other correspondence with the
customers;
RBEEBARFEBAEBHRKE S RFAMR
MRAEHZFEBREEETERENBERE (F
WRIEE Stk TRERPNISERKEE
REZPHNBAERGEEERIEARERP
B E AL RAE ) A B IR E

Assessing the appropriateness of the ECL
provisioning methodology, examining the key
data inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical
and forward-looking information, used to
determine the ECL; and

AETEREEEEEREERTAE MM
SRR BIR A AR R L ERE I e B
TEAETRHAGEERMAZRR B
BERAEMEER: &

We also assessed the disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements in relation
to the Group's credit risk exposure.
EEMAER EEBEERRNGSIMBER
K PTVEIRER -
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Key audit matter

BRESNER

Allowance for ECL of loan receivables

BUREF R EEERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBFTNNEERARESSE

Refer to notes 6(c) and 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

SRR B MWK M E6(c) K24 -

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's loan
receivables amounted to approximately
HK$101,153,000, net of allowance for ECL of
approximately HK$57,312,000.
RZZFEZZF+ZA=+—0- EHEEBEHE
WE 4 /101,153,0008 7 - Bk %EH;%EFS
BEE#57,312,0008 7T ©

The allowance for ECL of loan receivables
represents the management’s best estimates at
the end of the reporting period of ECL under
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9:
Financial Instruments ECL models.
ARERERERGEEBEREREEEERE
EAMBHREENESR - eI AREREE
BREEX RBERREEHEEER 2 RE
(EE
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Our procedures in relation to management'’s
assessment on provision for allowance for ECL of
loan receivables included:
BMEHEERRAREBRERNTEREEEE
BEETHENREFBE:

e Obtaining an understanding of and
evaluating the Group’s credit policies;

o TEEWHE BERENEEERXR

e Selecting samples to assess the
reasonableness of management judgement
on whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition and
whether credit impairment has occurred;

. “W$$ Nt EEEHEERRBE 915

RUARELRBELINEERELEEERE
mﬂ%méﬁﬁ,



Key audit matter

BARETER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBFTNNEERARESSE

Allowance for ECL of loan receivables (continued)

BUREHZEBREEERZE (&)

The measurement of ECL requires the
application of significant judgement and
increased complexity which include the
identification of exposures with a significant
deterioration in credit quality, and assumptions
used in the ECL models (for exposures
assessed individually or collectively), such as
the expected future cash flows and forward-
looking macroeconomic factors.

BHEEFENEARAEARHEBERAERR
EHEREE EBEAMNEEEREER LY
kg ARTEHEEBEEEXPEANRE (3
BERSARFEORARTE) - HlNFEHRRKR
ERERAEMABLCEREZ-

We focus on this area due to the significant
amount of the loan receivables and the
significant estimates and judgement involved
in determining the ECL assessment on the loan
receivables.

BRI T EDERERERNERERE
REFTERRERNEHEEBETEIREXR
ERPE -

Assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s
ECL models by examining the model
input used by management to form such
judgements, including testing the accuracy of
the default data from external international
credit rating agency, evaluating whether
the default data are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and
forward-looking information including the
economic variables and assumptions used
in each of the economic scenarios and their
probability weightings and assessing whether
there was an indication of management bias
when recognising loss allowances, assessing
appropriateness of the categorisation
of debtors, assessing relevance of
macroeconomic variables with the forward-
looking rate and how the change of these
variables affect ECL;

il EEEEHEEEREXSEMNS
ARBEEREREFEBABMRKAZE
N AR (B BIE N B BR S AT A
BRENBZOFENERYE) FER2ER
BRISERAKAELEN (BEGEKE
BRAMERBNCHEZEE MERRARHEB R
HE)RKEERABENEE UAFIEEERRE
RERBRBEREAFAERR THER
ADBEREEN FHEERBEE S HATHE
MAENEBUEARZEEENZ LA
ErEHEEBE:

Reviewed settlements after the financial year
end relating to the loan receivables as at
31 December 2022; and
REBEEREEER_ZT__F+A
StTt—HERREFHEBZEERBL: &

We also assessed the disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements in relation
to the Group’s credit risk exposure.

EENAMER EXEEEERRNESMB

WRPATIERE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information.
The Other Information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon
("Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the Other Information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether
the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WIS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safequards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yeung Man Sun

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number — P07606
24/F., Siu On Centre, 188 Lockhart Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

31 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
nelEEkHEMbEEINER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

Revenue
Costs of sales

Gross profit
Other income
Distribution and selling expenses
Operating expenses
Provision for expected credit
losses ("ECL") on trade,
other and loan receivables, net

Fair value (losses)/gains
on financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss ("FVTPL")
— Unrealised
— Realised

Loss from operation
Share of result of an associate
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on
translating foreign operations

Loss and total comprehensive
income for the year

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RgRIsBRA

Note
Kt

g 8
$HE R AN
EF
H bz 9
D REERT
g
FEIWE BRI AU
RERERERZTBH
sEEE ([AHEE

B ) BEFRE
BAFEFAERR
(BRAFEFTTAER])
JEMEEZAFE

(E18|) ks

—REIH

—B 2R
KREEE
JEIREt & N A 2 ¥ A
B 7% B A 11
MR ATE B
FrgfiAx 12
REEEIER 13
Hit2mEUWRH

AJBERALEFT 7 IRE
Rl HE -
BEBINERZ

REE 5, 2= #R

AEEBRK2E RS
HE

=

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TAET
128,035 199,967
(112,036) (174,624)
15,999 25,343
612 211
(3.121) (6,091)
(13,199) (25,152)
(40,603) (68,286)
(21,519) 16,743
4,823 16
(57,008) (57,216)
(54) -
(292) (470)
(57,354) (57,686)
— (1,154)
(57,354) (58,840)
(1) =
(57,355) (58,840)




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GEEEkEMEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

Loss for the year
attributable to:
Owner of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss and total comprehensive
income for the year
attributable to:

Owner of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company
(HK cents)

— Basic

— Diluted

TH AL
rEEBE:
ZNNEIE RN
TR B

THALEIEAFE
EREREZEWEAE:

ZNNCIE RN
R s

ARREBAES
BRER (GBAL)

—H R

—

Note
HiaF

17

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(56,992) (58,753)
(362) (87)
(57,354) (58,840)
(56,993) (58,753)
(362) (87)
(57,355) (58,840)
(3.79) (5.09)
N/A ~EH N/A “iE B
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R

At 31 December 2022 HW=—ZT——F+=-HA=+—H

2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
a3 FEx F& T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment S ER N 18 - -
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19 169 395
Investment in an associate R—EBERF2"E 20 79 =
Deposits Ze 21 205 205
Deferred tax assets FEFIEE E 30 23 23
476 623
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 4,758 =
Trade and other receivables EUWE SRR
H b fE W 5RIE 23 68,100 61,841
Loan receivables B W E =% 24 101,153 119,013
Financial assets at FVTPL BERFEFAERZ
SREE 25 74,974 87,284
Tax recoverable AJ Uy [B] F¢ I8 123 123
Cash and bank balances & MIBITA 8
- Segregated accounts —BYERP 26 5,742 7,223
— House accounts —BHEEKF 26 26,848 52,875
281,698 328,359
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables ENE SRR KR
H b FE 1 5018 27 74,726 65,703
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 1,310 1,304
Bank loan RITEK 29 2,177 2,905
78,213 69,912
Net current assets REBEETE 203,485 258,447
Total assets less current HEERTABAEE
liabilities 203,961 259,070
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Lease liabilities HEBRE 28 752 2,062
Net assets EEFHE 203,209 257,008

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Equity

Capital and reserves attributable
to owners of the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Non-controlling interest

Total equity

The consolidated financial statements on pages 80 to 199

R

ma BRI R

At 31 December 2022 H=—Z——F+=-A=+—8H

Note
g3

ZNNCIE R DN €A

fié 8
LN
18

FEIE A an
MR

31

were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of =

Directors on 31 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf

by:

ZHU Yuqi
RFEF
Director

EF

CHOW Hei Yin Terry

AEE
Director

EBEF

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TAET
9,231 8,958
194,428 248,138
203,659 257,096
(450) (88)
203,209 257,008

FSORI1E A MBHRERER =
—FZA=Zt+—HEEZTSHt
ERFEETIE THTIHNESEARK
FE:
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

meEEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—=%

ZoE+Z A=+ -BLEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATREARE
Other
capital Share Non-
Share Share reserve Contributed Translation options  Accumulated controlling
Capital premium £t surplus reserve reserve losses Subtotal interest Total
Rx RHEE oS- EON:L] RERE BRERRE 23t EE Nt FERER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tin T TiEn T Fikr Tn TiEn Tk Fin
(note 34(b)f)) ~ (note 34(B)i)  (note 34b)ii)  (note 34b)iv)  (note 34(b)i)
(HE4000)  (KEap0)  (KEsbin)  (BEAeN)  (KE3A00)
t1 January 2021 R-B--%-A-8 5477 70635 14,945 41253 (140) 18,99 (296,134 255,032 3 255,032
Loss and total comprehensive income  AFEBERZENELE
for the year - - - - - - (58,753) (58,753) (87) (58,840)
Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary B - - - - 1 1 (1)
Placing of shares (note 31) Bt iE‘i : 3481 54,516 - - - - - 57,997 S 57,997
Share options lapsed BREXH - - - - - (16,737) 16,737 S S S
Recognition of equity-settled share based BB bA R A E
payments (note 32) %EZM\“ - - - - - 2819 - 2819 S 2,819
At 31 December 2021 and R-E--+-A=1+-H
1 January 2022 —%-F-H 8,958 125,151 14,945 441,253 (140) 5078 (338,149) 257,096 (88) 257,008
Loss and total comprehensive income  AFEBERZENELEE
for the year - - - - (1) - (56,992) (56,993) (362) (57,355)
Issue of shares upon exercise of RTERRERE TR
share option (note 31) (Hit31) m 4759 - - - (1,476) - 3,55 S 355
Share options lapsed BREXH - - - - - (783) 783 S S S
At 31 December 2022 R-E-Z#+-A=1+-H 9,231 129910 14,945 441,253 (141) 2819 (394,358) 203,659 (450) 203,209

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #rigRHxBER AT



Operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Fair value losses/(gains) on
financial assets at FVTPL:

- Unrealised

- Realised
Finance costs
Share-based payment expense
Bank interest income
Share of result of associate
COVID-19 related rent

concessions received
Impairment of property,

plant and equipment
Impairment of right-of-use assets
Provision/(reversal) for ECL on:

- trade receivables
- loan receivables
- other receivables

Operating profit before working
capital changes
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and
other receivables
Increase in loan receivables

Decrease/(increase) in bank balances

- Segregated accounts
Increase in financial assets
at FVTPL
Increase in trade and
other payables

Cash used in operations
Income tax paid

Interest element of lease paid
Interest paid

Net cash used in operating
activities

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HLEFE

2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
H it FExT FET
SEE
BRI RIEE (57,354) (57,686)
R
ME - -BERRBZITE
— 429
ERAERECE 226 1,142
BRATEFABREZ

SRMEEZATE

B/ (W) :

—REIH 21,519 (16,743)

—B#IR (4,823) (16)

B & AR 292 470
I BER 2 NHES 36(a) = 2,819
ﬁﬁﬁﬂguﬁz/\ (1) -
RN T 54 -
2 Y CovID-19i8EHE &

B - (29)

ME - BERREZRE
- 1,890
FHAEEEZRE = 2,895
JEHEEEEREE
(B[O ) -

—EWE HERR 292 340

—EE 38,140 68,078

—H b B U GRIE 2,171 (132)
R EBEESEHA 2

g A 516 3,457
FE#E M (4,758) -

JE U 2 55 BR 3R i e Uk

A i's il (8,722) (21,130)
W E 5 i'jJu (20,280) (18,496)
BITREERR D (18 0)

—BURP 1,481 (1,603)
BRATEFABEZ

TRYEEE M (4,386) (9,475)
JE T2 5 BR 30 % E 8 {

FRIAIE 0 9,023 25,641
KEHP R (27,126) (21,606)
ENATER - (156)
ENEEZHERSD (137) (186)
EfFE (155) (284)
REEBRBHACRETHE

(27,418) (22,232)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

Investing activity REXK

Purchase of property, BEVE BELEH
plant and equipment

Acquisition of associate W B B 8 R A

Interest received B WA B

Net cash used in investing activities & & EEFTAE € F5E
Financing activities MEXK
/8 £h

Proceeds from placing of new shares Bt & % {7 FT 15 58
Proceeds from issue of shares upon P17 (& B& AR RS 35 17

exercise of share options 17 B 15 5018
Repayment of bank loan ERRITER

ENEEMNRAE D

Principal elements of lease
payment paid

Net cash from financing activities MEXKELE RS FE

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and R&E KB EFEIEE
cash equivalents ORid) /EmFeE

Effects of foreign exchange INEEEREE 2B
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BzHe k¥
1 January ZEEH

Cash and cash equivalents at RT-—B=1+—-HzE%

31 December kRESEEER
Analysis of cash and cash ReRASEEBE DI
equivalents
Cash and bank balances BeRBITES
- House accounts -BEERF
- Cash on hand -FERS

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

Note
Wat

31()

31(i1)
36(b)

36(b)

26

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
- (2,314)

(133) -

1 —
(132) (2,314)

- 57,997
3,556 -
(728) (679)
(1,304) (1,512)
1,524 55,806
(26,026) 31,260
(1 -
52,875 21,615
26,848 52,875
26,818 52,859
30 16
26,848 52,875




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wrE MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

GENERAL

SunCorp Technologies Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company
are Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda and Unit 2305, 23/F, The Center,
99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, respectively.
The Company’'s shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The Group is principally engaged in processing and
trading of used computer-related components,
provision of securities brokerage, placing and
underwriting services, money lending service and
sales of clothes and beauty product.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS");
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and
Interpretations. The consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

1.

—REHR

FREFEERAR ([RXA7])
ABEEBEEBREQAREZEERE
AL XBRBER AT
RAARZzidMPERERFESE
3 b B b 4k 5 Bl & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda & &
&2 F KBRS A IRF 23
182305 o AR AR D B B B
ERXRGMBER AR ([BEXFAT])
FREM-

ARPBREER AT - NEE
TERERENESE _FTEMN
HEAAEF REESEL KEE
K B SH AR TS ~ B AR 75 B 3K & AR

KNEBEM-

mRERE
KZEMBHRRERERT LS
Ao g((EBETMAE])
EHOAEEREAYBRE
ER([EBMBHREER]) K
H-BREMBRELENBREERE
MHREEN(IEREMBERSE
R FrEestEA([FH
BB KRB KNG M
BHREMETHIAESF LT
RAMBERBEEGRXREER
ARG (622B ) MKEE K-
REBRMHE KRG BRH
BREEM B RRME-

ZEGAAGERME T
FIRBIERTBEAMBEHRE LR

A EFERAEARKEE A A GG
HIE B R AR AT IR R -
B SE38 51 (A 90X e B AR &2
BRAZERMEENRANGEA M
BHRERARRER M BESS

Mz @ BRESHER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective
for the annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to

Accounting Guideline

5 (Revised)

Annual Improvements

to HKFRSs 2018-2020

Business Combination
- Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Property, plant and
equipment — proceeds
before intended use

Onerous contracts
- cost of fulfilling a
contract

Merger Accounting
for Common Control
Combinations

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16 and
HKAS 41

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year had no material impact on
the Group's financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. AT REEITEEY

HKFRSs (continued) BHREER (&)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not (b) BHEME N KREMZH
yet effective Al R BB & B BB

HEA|

The Group has not early applied any new and KEBWR-_ZE-__4—AH
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not — Bz ZMEBF
yet effective for the financial year beginning on EHMEREMERTME R
or after 1 January 2022. These new and revised 1B & R A 2 #E] R
HKFRSs include the following which may be CHENGIEE =3 K]
relevant to the Group. RREAEEBHE %S

STREETEBYBRE
R BHEATEE-

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTEHRZEBBNE
HEEX

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 On or after 1 January 2023
— Disclosure of Accounting Policies
ERGHEANR IR LNEAVBRESLENERLEF2HE R_T_=F—A—Hx 2z’
(BFTAR) —BEEFEHEK

Amendments to HKAS 8 — Definition of On or after 1 January 2023
Accounting Estimates

BB ERESH (BFTAR) — @A HESR RZFB-_=F—A—H%z&

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax Related to On or after 1 January 2023
Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction

ERGETERNFE125% (BETR) R_TE_=F—A—H%xzi&
—HE-XHEANEENABHEBNELEREA

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of On or after 1 January 2024
Liabilities as Current or Non-current

ER G ERE15 (BFTX) R_TF_NMFE—-HA—Hxkz’&
—RENRBXIFERD A

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current 1 January 2024
liabilities with Covenants

BB ERE IR (BFTAR) —WHERAENERBDAER —ZE-F—H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability On or after 1 January 2024
in a Sales and Leaseback

EREMBRELERE 165 (BFTX) R_TFE_MFE-HA—Hxk2’&
—ERHEONEEEE

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of On or after 1 January 2024

Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

EBRBESH (EIE)HBREN2E R-—B-mE—A—BRZ%
—ERANEHEEREREERINEHRERN S
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or To be determined

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

BEANBEWMELENE 10 REBSETERFE28% (BF]AK) 3
—KREEREBENAIEAELEXBEERETETE
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ZoE+Z A=+ -BLEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far
it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies
below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 5.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—=%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, TEGFBUR (#)
(continued)
The significant accounting policies applied in MUZEHREVBBERFER
the preparation of these consolidated financial MEEGTBEREINMT -

statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation (a) &rEERB

The consolidated financial statements include BENBmEBEARRA
the financial statements of the Company and MEWBAGGBENEZE
its subsidiaries made up to 31 December. +ZA=+—BH LMK
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group WER-WBAREAEEA
has control. The Group controls an entity when EREGIENERB-EXEE
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns ARSEERBERMNEA
from its involvement with the entity and has the IEREZEFHEH IE
ability to affect those returns through its power RO ERAHERBNELM
over the entity. The Group has power over an HEZERWmE AIHZE
entity when the Group has existing rights that BAFEZHE - BEXAEEHE
give it the current ability to direct the relevant EXHEBRIEHMIEENEHA
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect EE (N EREERENE
the entity's returns. TEMNEE) MR AR

B AEEHZERBES

S
When assessing control, the Group considers its A fEEGERN AEEE
potential voting rights as well as potential voting EZREABEREENULH
rights held by other parties. A potential voting EMEAFENEBEERE
right is considered only if the holder has the E-ENFHBEABEREN
practical ability to exercise that right. TEEEREER TS

Bk SR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a) Consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date the control
ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Company. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position and consolidated statement of
changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders
and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, TESBER (@)

(continued)

(b) Associates (b) Hﬁﬁ%i\\ﬁ
AR N

Associates are entities over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other
entities, are considered when assessing whether
the Group has significant influence. In assessing
whether a potential voting right contributes to
significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right
is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
in an acquisition are measured at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill
which is included in the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in an
associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses and other
comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group's net investment in the associate),
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. If the
associate subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the share
of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate
that results in a loss of significant influence
represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the
fair value of any investment retained in that
associate and (ii) the Group’s entire carrying
amount of that associate (including goodwill)
and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve. If an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity
method and does not remeasure the retained
interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

4. FESEBER (8)

(b) BE&E QT (&)

KEIFTE 65%/&?%@%
f?:%@ 5 & E A 2
o= TE/\&,H\WEEHQ
MR o i AR B RS

ARRERBAERNABEBH
REtERm s (BRE
mMEHED BE L B
AEBEBRERE QR FE
—®2) AAKEETEHE
s ?’EWEEE?@ FRIEARKED
EXETHRBERAN
o Bt g N R RS
M- RIAREEEREEIEE
MBERERERENE
B TemERREENG
i A o

HEBE QA ERAEE
K82 W BB E )
ﬁ’iﬁ{g S {F A0 5 B

NRAIZEMRBEEZAR
ﬁfﬁ&(ll)$’§lfﬁf£ i &

NE) I EREE (’\ﬂ]%?:ﬁ%i)
&Tifﬂﬁggfﬁﬁﬂ\ﬁﬂﬁéﬁ
R A 2 =58 - IR B
BRNRIZIREK A CE\%
TCEZRE ANEBEER
AEFEZIETEEHTE
HiRE -

HIEAEE B AR E QA
ZERSHAREIR & F
Mﬁﬁlﬂ%%LTm%
mAER - REREBEBEITET
LASESE  BRIFRR BPIRED
HEREELBERENEE-
%%ﬂ?%@ﬁﬁ%&%

SEEFE N AERE
ﬁﬁlﬁimzﬁ — %

W$ A2 BARARA
REEE QR 2 ELKA
ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ%°



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

4. FESEBER (8)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation

(1)

(1)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end
of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is
the date on which the company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(1)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in foreign currencies are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all
the Group’s entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the
Company's presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement

of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wrE MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ifi) Translation on consolidation (continued)

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

— Al resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of monetary
items that form part of the net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost less their residual values over the estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Over the shorter of

the term of the lease

or 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Leasehold improvement

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, TESBER (@)

(continued)

(e) Leases (e) HE

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(e) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,

the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party

financing was received

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases, which does not have recent third-

party financing, and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.qg.

term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is
available to the individual lessee (through recent
financing or market data) which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the group
entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, TESBER (@)

(continued)

(e) HE (&)

(e) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e) Leases (continued)

(f)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which
arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In such
cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16
and recognised the change in consideration as if
it were not a lease modification, and recognised
the change in consideration as negative lease
payments in profit or loss in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
first in, first out basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. The costs
of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, TESBER (@)

(continued)

(9) Ewu\ n\ JJ:&EWL,\%HQI

(g) Recognition and derecognition of

financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group's entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments (continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group's obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,

is recognised in profit or loss.

(h) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the

classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement

categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of principal
and interest. Interest income from the
investment is calculated using the effective

interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, TESBER (@)

(continued)

(h) EBMEE ()

(h) Financial assets (continued)

Debt investments (continued) EERE (&)
fair value through other comprehensive - BERAFEGAHME
income (“FVTOCI") - recycling, if the ik ([#&2A2FES
contractual cash flows of the investment AHEMz2zEWE]) —

comprise solely payments of principal and
interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved
by both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or
loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective
interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

FVTPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or fair FVTOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Financial assets (continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an election to
designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment
meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit
or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at
FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as

other income.

(i) Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the

amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for

credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wrE MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(0

(k)

(N

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m) Trade and other payables

(n)

(o)

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the customer,
at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o) Revenue and other income (continued)

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
wholesale’s specific location (delivery). Following
delivery, the wholesaler has full discretion over
the manner of distribution and price to sell
the goods, has the primary responsibility when
on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when
the goods are delivered to the wholesaler as this
represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment
is due.

Commission income from securities dealing and
brokerage services is recognised on trade date
basis when the relevant sale or purchase of
securities transactions is executed.

Commission income from placing and underwriting
service is recognised in accordance with the terms of
the underlying agreement or deal mandate when the
relevant significant act has been completed.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(p) Employee benefits

(1)

(1)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to
profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment
of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wrE MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(q) Share-based payments

(r)

(s)

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors, employees and
consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors
and employees are measured at the fair value
(excluding the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at
the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants
are measured at the fair value of the services
rendered or, if the fair value of the services
rendered cannot be reliably measured, at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted. The fair
value is measured at the date the Group receives
the services and is recognised as an expense.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it and that the
grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the
period to match them with the costs they are
intended to compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s) Government grants (continued)

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

(t) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit recognised in profit or loss because of
items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by

the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, TESBER (@)

(continued)

(t) Taxation (continued) (t) I\ (&)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the related
lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t)

(u)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms
due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired,
it is written down as an expense through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. If this is the
case, recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal of
the individual asset or the cash-generating unit
("CGQU").
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

4. FESEBER (8)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(u) Impairment of non-financial assets

(v)

(continued)

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates
that reflect the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment
is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro
rata amongst the other assets of the CGU.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount
caused by changes in estimates are credited to
profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the
impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL
on investments in debt instruments that are
measured at amortised cost, trade receivables
and loan receivables. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of
the respective financial instrument.

(u) FERMEERE (&)

(v)

ERBEREE BRELES
BUBFARRRSREDN
RE RERRREEEH
BEMEE BREELEN
(BFFERE)NEERR
ZBATRRR R E -

BeELXBEUMEEBBR
KO EReELBUEE
FAET OB At EE

BHHEHZ A YOS 5 IR N
Rt ABm B E B OEIE -

TREERE

AEBBRIZBHEKANGE
MREBLIAZRE EK
B R REWE RN E
HEEBREIABERERE-
BHEEBEESENE R
TEHEH URKRBEND
ERAARBHEER T AN

EHRARED -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4%

115



116

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. The ECL on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date, including time value of money where

appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month

ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting

date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. FESEBER (8)

(v) EBMEERE (&)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument
at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group's
debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental
bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of various
external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core
operations.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument;
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

— existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;
and

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

4. FESEBER (8)

(v) TREERE (#)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of
default,

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term, and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of “investment grade” in accordance
with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has
an internal rating of “performing”. Performing
means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there are no past due
amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable:

— when there is a breach of financial covenants
by the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating to
the counterparty’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the counterparty a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

— the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Werite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, including when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made

are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above.
As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross

carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the

original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, TESBER (@)

(continued)

(v) EREERME (#)

(v) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance
for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but
determines at the current reporting date that the
conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met,
the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current
reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

(w) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(x) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group's
position at the end of the reporting period
are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the directors are required
to make judgements (other than those involving
estimations) that have a significant impact on the
amounts recognised and to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
the directors of the Company have made the
following judgement that has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).
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4. FESEBER (8)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

5. EEHE R ETE MG (&)

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(v), ECL are measured as
an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage
1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage
3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk.
In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased, the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing
goods or services to a customer, the Group
determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group
as a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e.
the Group as an agent). The Group is a principal
if it controls the specified good or services
before that good or services is transferred to a
customer.

Revenue from processing and trading of used
computer-related and sales of clothes and beauty
product are recognised at point in time, when
control of the goods has transferred, being when
the goods have been shipped to the wholesale’s
specific location (delivery).

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Income tax

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax.
Significant estimates are required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made. During the vyear,
nil (2021: HK$1,154,000) of income tax was
charged to profit or loss based on the estimated
profit from the Group’s operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. EEHET R EEMS (#)
ESTIMATES (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty A TRERZ 2 EERR
(continued) (&)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables and loan b) EKEZEAREKE
receivables 8

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of impairment loss for ECL on trade
receivables and loan receivables based on
the credit risk of trade receivables and loan
receivables. The amount of the impairment
loss based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. Where the future cash flows are less
than expected, or being revised downward due
to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts
of trade receivables and loan receivables
were approximately HK$52,278,000 (2021:
approximately HK$38,998,000) (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of approximately HK$905,000
(2021: HK$1,792,000)) and HK$101,153,000
(2021: HK$119,013,000) (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of approximately HK$57,312,000
(2021: HK$169,012,000)).
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AEBEBEFT BRI AR
ERE (RVIFERSETE
MERMERER) M E
BB -MAXRERED
REHIAAZTERBERE
fERmATH MAIEELEE
RBERERE -

RZEZ—F+_A=1+—
H BKESERKRERE
2 BRMEEY 552,278,000
BT (ZFTEZ—F: 4
38,998,000/ L) (k&
BR #  49905,000/8 7t (=
T - —4%:1,792,000/%
7)) % 101,153,000/ T
—F - —4%:119,013,000
B (B RERELD
57,312,000 L (=T = —
:169,012,000587T) ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(c) Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the
Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred or any indicators that
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including
cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs.
Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate
in the cash flow projections, could materially

affect the recoverable amounts.

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at
31 December 2022 were approximately Nil
(2021: approximately Nil) and HK$169,000
(2021: HK$395,000) respectively. As at 31
December 2022, accumulated impairment losses
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets were approximately HK$1,890,000
(2021: HK$1,890,000) and 2,895,000 (2021:

HK$2,895,000) respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, price risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Group is
denominated in HK$. The Group has certain
exposure to foreign currency risk as some of
its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in United States dollars
("US$"), Australian dollars (“AUD") and
Renminbi ("RMB"). The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets
and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the US$ is pegged against HK$ and the
risk of movements in exchange rates between
US$ and HK$ to be insignificant. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis is performed on the
movements in exchange rates between US$ and
HK$.

No sensitivity analysis has been performed
on the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
denominated in AUD and RMB as the directors
of the Company are of opinion that they are not
material to the Group.

6.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—=%

ZoE+Z A=+ -BLEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

(b) Price risk

()

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in equity securities
classified as financial assets at FVTPL (note 25).
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles. The Group's
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
securities quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2021: 10%) higher/
lower, with all other variables held constant, loss
before tax for the year ended 31 December 2022
and accumulated losses would have decreased/
increased by approximately HK$7,497,000 (2021:
HK$8,728,000).

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Group is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables
and loan receivables) and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies,
for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

For financial assets whose impairment losses
are measured using expected credit loss
model, the Group assesses whether their credit
risk has increased significantly since their
initial recognition, and applies a three-stage
impairment model to calculate their impairment
allowance and recognise their expected credit
losses, as follows:

Stage 1:

Stage 2:

Stage 3:

If the credit risk has not increased
significantly since its initial recognition,
the financial asset is included in stage
1.

If the credit risk has increased
significantly since its initial recognition
but not yet deemed to be credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is
included in stage 2.

If the financial instrument is credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is
included in stage 3

Bt 75 L B B R ()

(c) FERMR (&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each
business unit subject to the Group’s established
policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables arising
from the business of dealing in securities are due
within 2 trading days (2021: 2 trading days) after
the trade date and secured by client’s securities.
Trade receivables arising from other business are
due within 30 to 90 days (2021: 30 to 90 days)
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers other
than the cash clients of securities brokerage

business.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

6.

Bt 75 L B B R ()

(o) EERERR (&)

JEW B 5 85K

BEFEERKBRBEERKI
MER WEBTAEEA
SITEEFPEERRE R
MEZBR BF REE-
rEEBRTE—TEH
EEZEZHREPETHEER
EEFH -ZEFHEEEX
FRAREBEIHAR AN
Rk RIER T RE S
TEEREFZETER MU
NEFEE L& EIRE
LER - BHERXIEBEE
ZERWESERNRRSH
HEMBEZXSA (ZE=—
FREAXSH)ANE I
NEFHEHFERM HZE
BEEZRERWESERE
BRE HHIRET30F90R (=
T —44:302908)REF
H-REBBAT KANEH
WRAEP (BHELLED
B IR & % PR AN WA 7

=)
an °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MBEREE (&)

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERAB (&)
Trade receivables (continued) JEWE ZBRH (&)
The Group measures loss allowances for trade AEFERZRNZHTEH
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, EEEBEBZEBETERK
which is calculated using a provision matrix. BOBRRZEREH K
To measure the expected credit losses, trade FRBEEREETTE - B
receivables are grouped on the basis of shared AEEMEEERE BRE
credit risk characteristics, such as industry and SEREEREREFEERR
recognition of loss allowance on a timely basis. FRO(PImITR) BEET

7 AR R S RE R R A

The following tables provide information about TREINEER T
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for FR_ZFE-_—-—F+ZA
trade receivables, as at 31 December 2022 and ST -—BAREEEEKRER
2021: B2 ZEERR KA
HEEBEZER:
2022
Gross

Expected carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance

FHERE REAE BiEEE

% HK$’000 HK$'000

% FERT THERT

Past due 2 8

0 — 30 days 0&30H 1.5% 27,031 (415)
31 - 60 days 31260H 1.3% 8,977 (121)
61 — 90 days 61£290H 1.6% 7,530 (119)
Over 90 days 90H M E 2.6% 9,645 (250)
Total mEt 53,183 (905)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Past due

0 — 30 days
31 - 60 days
61 — 90 days
Over 90 days

Total

2 8
0ZE30H
31%£60H
61290H
90H SA E

St

6. KEMREE (&)

(c) FERMR (&)

JEKE R (E)

2021

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHRES 1B X RERE 518 B 1%
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FA&TT FET
1.1% 34,842 (367)
1.9% 2,976 (56)
2.2% 803 (18)
62.3% 2,169 (1,351)
40,790 (1,792)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the expected
lives of the trade receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wrE MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance for trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

At 1 January n—H—H
Written-off 1 55

Impairment losses recognised FABBZBEEE
for the year

At 31 December R+—_A=+—8H

Other receivables

Other receivables relating to accounts that are
long overdue with significant amounts, known
insolvencies or non-response to collection
activities, they are assessed individually for
impairment allowance. The Group recognised
the provision for ECL by assessing the credit
risk characteristics of debtor, discount rate and
the likelihood of recovery and considering the
prevailing economic conditions.

Bt 75 L B B R ()

(c) FERMR (&)

JEKE R (E)

FA BERESERNER
BE2IHMT:

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
1,792 1,452
(1,179) -
292 340
905 1,792

A fth fE WA
BHEALSEEARNZR

B-EXMEHNEEXTEE
87538 W08 8 2 B b B I
TRIR - & BURE R 1FE R
A - AEEEBRIEER
AZEEERBRFEE MBRE
EimEzal gt KkERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

Other receivables (continued)

Movement in the loss al

lowance for other

receivables during the year is as follows:

At 1 January 2021
Reversal of provision for ECL

At 31 December 2021 and
1 January 2022

Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3
Provision for ECL

At 31 December 2022

Other receivables and deposits, gross
Less: Loss allowance

Other receivables and deposits, net

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

Bt 75 L B B R ()

(c) FERMR (&)

A fEWHH (E)

479+ A R 3B 0 1B
BESHOT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIRR FIRE HIER o5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TEL
R-Z--£-f—-H 336 - - 336
RECEFBRERD (132) - - (132)
R-E-—&E+-R
=t-Bk
—E--%—-Hf-H 204 = = 204
mEIERERR
EIRR (21) - 21 -
BHEEFERE 1,067 - 1,104 2,171
i
+-A=t-8 1,250 = 1,125 2,375
As at 31 December 2022
ZE_ZE+ZA=1-H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1RE IR EIER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FERL FERT FET THER
EtENFEREE B8R 5,395 - 1,125 6,520
B (1,250) = (1,125) (2,375)
EthEBFEREE 5 4,145 = - 4,145




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)

(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERAB (&)

A fEWHH (E)

Other receivables (continued)

As at 31 December 2021
RZB--F+-A=1+-H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

E1BE FE E3BE @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T THL T T

Other receivables and deposits, gross A EKFIERizE 11,096 - - 11,096

Less: Loss allowance /UE BiERE (204) - - (204)

Other receivables and deposits, net ~ EtENFBERES TR 10,892 - - 10,892
Loan receivables JEWE

In order to minimise the credit risk, the AREEREEERR I&%

management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approval and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken for the
recoverable amount of the loan receivables. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual’s loan receivables
at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment loss is made for
irrecoverable amounts.

BEEEEZK—#HAR
EEEEEERE FEH
MEREAMEBREN  AHER
BE PR AR A 17 ) DAY [ &
WERZAI K E -t
S REBERSHREHRE
B % 18 5l F& W & 3w 7] W

O & 88 - #E R AT A U E /Y
SR IREHNRERRE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued)

Loan receivables (continued)

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk
for each of their new and existing clients before
standard payment terms and conditions are
offered. If there is no independent rating, the
Group assesses the credit quality of the customer
based on the customer’s financial position, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk limits
are set based on internal or external ratings in
accordance with limits set by the directors of
the Company. The utilisation of credit limits
is regularly monitored. Loan receivables are
repayable in accordance with the terms of the
loan agreements and all loan receivables are

recoverable within 1 year.

In determining the ECL of the Group's loan
receivables, the management assessed the
expected losses individually by estimation based
on general economic conditions of the relevant
industry in which the debtors operate, value
of any pledged assets, financial position of the
debtors and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at

the reporting date.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in
certain individual customers. As at 31 December
2022, the carrying amount of the largest loan
receivables were approximately HK$21,807,000
(2021: HK$27,722,000) and was approximately
22% (2021 23%) of the Group’s total loan
receivables. The Group seeks to minimise its risk
by dealing with counterparties which have good

credit history.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wrE MR MR

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—

Bt 75 L B B R ()

Loan receivables (continued)

Loan receivables

Loan receivables

T+ A=T-HLEEE

(c) EERE (&)

Movement in the loss allowance for loan
receivables during the year is as follows:

At 1 January 2021

Transfer from stage 1 to stage 2
Transfer from stage 2 to stage 3
Provision for ECL

At 31 December 2021 and
1 January 2022
Transfer from stage 2 to stage 3
Provision for ECL
Written-off

At 31 December 2022

JEWE S (&)
2022
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEERR BREAE B iR e
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FHET FHExT
JE U & 36.2% 158,465 (57.312)
2021
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHA A X RERE 5 18 1
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET FETT
& W E X 58.7% 288,025 (169,012)
FR EBUERNEERE
gEaT
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B1RR KR EIKR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TET TR FET FER
W_Z-_—-F— E 756 100,178 - 100,934
E%M&“ﬁ%%ﬁ% BB (756) 756 = -
mEEREREEIRE s (87,053) 87,053 -
RECEBEES = 5,706 62,372 68,078
RZZ-Z-F+-RA=1+—H
R=2--%-A-H - 19,587 149,425 169,012
E%z BB EIEER = (74) 74 -
RBCEBEREE 6,158 31,641 340 38,139
g - = (149,839)  (149,839)
R_E-_—f+-A=1+-H 6,158 51,154 4 57,312
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MKEKMERE (&)
(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERAB (&)
Loan receivables (continued) EWEF (&)

As at 31 December 2022
R=-B=--—%+=-A=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIEER 2B HE3ER At
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERX FER FER

Loan receivables, gross & UX & Zk 48 58 26,719 131,746 - 158,465
Less Loss allowance BB 1B R (6,158) (51,154) - (57,312)
Loan receivables, net EWEFFRE 20,561 80,592 - 101,153
As at 31 December 2021
RZE-_—F+=-HA=+—8H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

FIPEER FE2MEER  F3IMER HBET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHET FHET TET

Loan receivables, gross [EWE K425 - 138,599 149,426 288,025
Less Loss allowance RS 1 - (19,586) (149,426) (169,012)
Loan receivables, net B U B FROF R - 119,013 - 119,013
The decrease in loss allowance on loan BHE-_T-_-—_#+ = A
receivables during the year ended 31 December =t+t—HILEFE BKER
2022 was mainly due to the written off of EEBRERIETERHARN
approximately HK$149,839,000. 5 #9149,839,0003% 7T Ff

o
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wrE MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HLEFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MKEKMERE (&)

(continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (d) RENE ©E B2

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
long term.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of reporting
period of the Group's non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates, or

AEBMNBKRARTEHHER
BRINTEHABESRE

AR H #4152 03R © %
ﬁ ﬁ1‘fﬁ1\§4ﬁﬁ)§i§ﬁﬁﬂl\]/}|h

RBEEHRAKEIFETLE
TRABZRBKANERE
%*%ﬁﬁumi(@%&
BRNKRFEZFENK
&m&&ﬁﬂ+uﬁ-MM
EHRZBETHNERFE

if floating, based on rates current at the end of Zﬂ SAF R B &R

reporting period) and the earliest date the Group SEATRAXNOKEA
can be required to pay: RGP AN T -

On demand Total

or less than Between Between  undiscounted

1year 1and2years 2 andb5 years cash flow

EERS AR

SPME 1228 2858 BERELE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THL THT AT FET

At 31 December 2022 RZE-ZF+ZA=1+- El

Trade and other payables ERESERREMER K 74,726 - - 74,726
Lease liabilities *ﬁ%ﬁf Ef 1,382 767 - 2,149
Bank loan FITER 2,177 = = 2,177
78,285 767 - 79,052
At 31 December 2021 -2- iH A=t-H
Trade and other payables Fﬁ BHRTREMERNRE 65,703 = = 65,703
Lease liabilities HE Ef 1,442 1,382 766 3,590
Bank loan BAER 2,905 = = 2,905
70,050 1,382 766 72,198

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 88 141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

(e) Interest rate risk

(f)

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily
relates to variable-rate bank balances. It is the
Group’s policy to keep its borrowing at floating
rate of interest so as to minimise the cash flow
interest rate risk.

The Group's loan receivables, lease liabilities and
bank loans bear interests of fixed interest rates
and therefore are subject to fair value interest
rate risk.

Except as stated above, the Group does not
have other significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period, its income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis on cash flow interest-rate
risk has not been presented as the reasonably
possible changes in market interest rate will
not have significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Categories of financial instruments at
31 December

THMEE:

Financial assets:
Financial assets at FVTPL

SREE
Financial assets REEK ARG EZ
at amortised cost TREE
Financial liabilities: cWMAas:
Financial liabilities REHEK AT EZ
at amortised cost TEAE

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

6. KEMREE (&)

(e) A=

(f)

BMAFEFABRZZ

AEENRERENXME
R EBEIEB A KRITHE
SAEMR AEEZBRERR
HUNFBHFEABBE A
IR 2w E N X R R E
RIK

AEEZEKER BESR
ERRTERDYRETF
it 8 FAEREATE
R L5 o

Br bt E SN AREBREE
HARYBEMERGFEE
EREE HRAREER
TRE XD NEHHAF

ERIETE-

R MH MRS IE A B
EHR T eHAEE R
EMBBMREEEARE
BMAERZEINREREFN X
a2 ) R E AT o

R+-—BA=+—H=z%
BT BEEA

2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
74,974 87,284
189,961 228,797
76,903 68,608
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
(g) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values as at
31 December 2022 and 2021.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

e Level 1 Fair value measured using only
valuations: Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.
e Level 2 Fair value measured using Level 2
valuations: inputs, that is, observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for
which market data are not available.
e Level 3 Fair value measured using significant
valuations:  unobservable inputs

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

6. KEMREE (&)

(9) 2F¥E
REMBRAKRMESHN
AEBsREERS R
BEEMEEESRERN-F
TZFERZEZ—F+=
A=+—Hz2&%82¥@E
BE -

7. 2¥ETE
TREJINAEBRFE B RIZ
KEHEEEFENESBRIAR
FE - BEREAFEREBSY R
EEBIFIZFAFEFEMHR
FEZAFE=ZREERETD
RN FEFENFRENER
K2 EZP T HERITFANEG
ABENITEREREEZEM

B

cEF M EUFE-—RBARE

E: FEAFE AEF
BEXABNFEH
Hl 2R BTI5 R EH
EHRE-

e FH/ UBE —REWABURET

e EBRFE BIREN
BE—RRAEZAE
R ABE AET
EREXRTABRE
ABE-TAEREH
ABER A/ BUEH
SBIE 2 B ABUE -

cFE=M NUEARTABERHA

fmE: BUEtEAFE-

AEENBRRARERELL
BRAMEmMSENERE B
RE=ZEREMRTER—EE
B EBAKLEL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at

31 December:

Description

Recurring fair value
measurements:

Financial assets

Financial assets at FVTPL

- Listed equity securities

Description

Recurring fair value
measurements:

Financial assets

Financial assets at FVTPL

- Listed equity securities

R

EREATENE:

BATEFABRZ
—EHRAE S

#

BEMATERE:

THEE
BAVEFAREL
TREE
— EHBRAES

AP EFE ()
Rt=A=t+-B2A¥HE
BARE -

Fair value measurements using:

AFEHEFRAUTER: Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 gt
F—& F-H B 2021

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL TEL TER
74,974 - - 74,974

Fair value measurements using:

AFEFEFAUATER: Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Bt
EF—H F-H R 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET AT AT
87,284 - - 87,284

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there
were no transfers in the fair value hierarchy between
Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level

3 (2021: Nil).

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

8. REVENUE
Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major products or service line for the
year is as follows:

8. Wz
U %= BA 41

FAREIBZEMARBRE D
BEFAa#WamAMAmT :

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Revenue from contracts ERMBREER
with customers within FISHEERZ
the scope of HKFRS 15: BEFEHWE:
Disaggregated by major BEIEEMARBER
products or service lines 2l #y ER 41
Sales of telephones and related $HE EaE MR A
components - 10,007
Processing and trading of used BRELREE-_FEK
computer-related components MR RE AR 4 46,148 81,503
Commission from securities BHEERKLRY
dealing and brokerage services EXzRE 355 338
Commission from placing and RERBIERBEEZ
underwriting service A< 2,104 1,602
Sales of clothes and beauty product 5% R%E K& XA E @ 68,188 86,344
116,795 179,794
Revenue from other sources: H At W 22 ROR ¢
Interest income from money MERGES 2 F B WA
lending services 10,973 20,109
Interest and related income BHREEZIER
from securities MR A 267 64
11,240 20,173
Total revenue & 128,035 199,967
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

8. REVENUE (continued) 8. Wi (#)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued) Wi BA AR (4&)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of REEBRNUTETEEMSZ LM
goods and services at a point in time and over time HRE -SSR RERGHEE
in the following major product line and geographical EEm kRIS EEH W
regions:
2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET
Timing of revenue recognition: W BERERE :
At a point in time 75— B R B 116,795 179,794
Geographical market: WEMIF !
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") FEARKEME ([FHEH])

(including Hong Kong) (BEHB) 73,107 113,368
India HE 705 333
Indonesia E1fE Fe s 36,921 52,687
United States of America ("USA”) EFIREFH ([XE]) 6,033 5,311
Others Hity 29 8,095

116,795 179,794

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hflr A
2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Bank interest income RITH E WA 1 -
Sundry income FMIEWA 307 211
Government grant (note) BT RG (B AE) 304 -
612 211
note: The amount mainly represents the receipts from Biat: ZEFRBEDEEREBRG

Employment Support Scheme provides by the
Hong Kong government. The conditions of the
government grant were fulfilled during the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. » EPE R

The executive directors of the Company are identified
as the chief operating decision maker of the
Group for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessments.

The Group has five operating segments as follows:
(i) Sales of telephones and related components;

(ii) Processing and trading of used computer-related
components;

(iii) Money lending services;

(iv) Provision of securities brokerage, placing and
underwriting services; and

(v) Sales of clothes and beauty product.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic
business units that offer different products and
services. They are managed separately because
each business requires different technology and
marketing strategies. The accounting policies of the
operating segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies. Segment profits or losses do not
include realised and unrealised fair value gains and
losses on financial assets at FVTPL and unallocated
administrative expenses, finance costs and income
tax expense. Segment assets do not include financial
assets at FVTPL and other unallocated corporate
assets. Segment liabilities do not include unallocated
corporate liabilities.

wrE MR MR

S-oFt-A=t+-BILEE

ARBHITESTHRRER/AE
BONETEZLERKE LAEE
IR0 B B B AT A o
AEBBUTRERLE DB
(i) sHEERRMEEANT:

(i EENMNES _FEKEHA
B

)

(i) MIEARTS :

(iv) RERESERL EEREH
AR5 R

f

(v) HERKEXZBEM-

AEBEWNIUERIHBARAREHT
FEMNEREA RS EIEENL -
ERAENEE S - N
MERE WEBEENEHRS
E‘B KEDEMSETBRARSE
et BERAR - o 56 F k&
BABERATFEF AR Z
CTREECEEHERAKRER
FTEHU=RBEERRS @ETTBZ
A BEXARAEHAS-
DPHEETBEEAFETA
?ﬁ e MEEREMARSER
NRBE -HHEABTERERD
[RNCTE=Ri-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. 7 HREH (@)
Information about operating segment profit FRARE D BRANEE -
or loss, assets and liabilities EEREBEZER

Provision of

brokerage,
Used placing and Sales of
Telephones  computer- underwriting  clothes and
and related related services beauty
components  components Money — REEE&E. product

gk -FEK lending RER #HERER Total
RBAK  RBak HE  RERE  x%ER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR ThR ThR THR TER TER

For the year ended HE-3-CF

31 December 2022 tZR=+-BLEE
Revenue ki - Gu8 109 M6 6818 128035
Segment (loss)/profit A5 (B8) /&7 (517) (681)  (31,905) 109 (178) (33172
Fair value gains/(losses) o~ BATEFABEL

financial assets at FVTPL: SREELLTE

i/ (B8):

- Unrealised -K&% (21,519)

- Realised -2&% 4,823
Unallocated expenses AAERY (7,140)
Share of result of associate ~ E(FBA R 25 (54)
Finance costs BEMK (29)
Loss before tax B nEE (57,354)
Asat31December2022 R-B--#

t-ZB=t+-H
Segment assets PHEE 67 10,076 103,359 29,915 46,644 190,061
Unallocated assets AONEE 92,113
282,174
Segment labilties ARak 29322 2,531 7,687 5873 29,861 75,274
Unallocated liabilities AEEE 3,691
78,965
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. 7 HREH (@)
Information about operating segment profit BREAKE D= A EE
or loss, assets and liabilities (continued) EEREEBEZEN (&)

Provision of

brokerage,
Used placing and Sales of
Telephones  computer- underwriting  clothes and
and related related services beauty
components  components Mongy — fRfEER- product

B lending RER HERRR Total
HEAH  REAN WE  AERE  X%Em it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn

For the year ended HE-%3--F
31 December 2021 TZR=t-BLEE
Revenue W& 10,007 81,503 20,109 2,004 86,344 199,967
Segment (loss)/profit A% (EB) /& (999) 284 (61,884) (2,825) 612 (64,812)
Fair value gains/(losses) on AT ABEL
financial assets at FVTPL: SREELLTE
Wi/ (BR):
- Unrealised -RER 16,743
- Realised -E2R 16
Unallocated expenses APERX (9.163)
Finance costs BERK (470)
Loss before tax BHAEE (57,686)
As at 31 December 2021  W-B=-%
tZA=+-H
Segment assets HHEE 24 12,889 120,080 22,572 30,489 186,274
Unallocated assets AOREE 142,708
328,982
Seqment liabilities PHER 28,983 4,494 9,482 11,945 13,582 68,486
Unallocated liabilites APREE 3,488
71974
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. 7 W& (&)
Other segment information Hth 73 38 &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BEZE-—ZB-_—Hf+=-RA=+-—
BLEFE
Provision of
brokerage,
Used placing and Sales of
Telephones ~ computer- underwriting ~ clothes and
and related related services beauty
components  components Money — REEE. product
EFRk  CFEH lending RER HERZR  Unallocated Total
RRAk  BBAK e BERE  %%ER AR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

TEn TEn TRn TRn TRn TEn TEn

Amounts incuded in the €7 TERFEES

150

measure of £

seqment profit or loss:
Depreciation of right-of-use EFEEE 7 &

assets - 226 - - - - 26
Fair value gains/(losses) on - BATEi A BEZ

financial assets at VTPl £ BEEZATE

Y&/ (B8):

- Unrealised -FER - - - - - 21,519 21,519

- Realised -28% - - - - - (4,823) (4823)
Provision/(reversal) for ~ BEEEEE

ECLon; B/ (Bm):

- Loan receivables -EUEH - - 38,140 - - - 38,140

- Trade receivables -EXE AR - 3 - 28 W - 292

- Other receivables -Eb RN 123 928 150 2) 85 921 M
Interest expense HERR - - - - - 9 pL)]

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—T_-_—F#+_-A=1+—HLtEE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. 7 HREH (@)
Other segment information (continued) Hih o BER (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bz -_—F+_A=+—
HIEFE
Provision of
brokerage,
Used placing and Sales of
Telephones ~ computer- underwriting  clothes and
and related related Services beauty
components  components Mongy &L product
BER  -FEK lending BER  HERER  Unallocated Total

HRAk  BEAR KR BERE  XBEm Fok it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKFOOO  HK$'000
TATL TR TRT TAT ThT TATL TATL

Amounts included in the ~ i+E5 TERFEEL

measure of 28

segment profit o foss:
Depreciation of property, 1% BERZENE

plant and equipment - - 424 - 5 - 429
Depreciation of right-of-use FRELE 7 HTE

assets - 5 1,086 - - - 1,142
Impairment property, plant 1% - BE R & & LA fE

and equipment - - 1,890 - - - 1,890
Impaiment of right-of-use  EFEEE 2R E

assets - - 2,895 - - - 2,8%

Fair value gains/(losses)on - BATEi A BEZ
financial assets at VTPl £BEEZATFE

Y&/ (B8):

- Unrealised -RER - - - - - (16743 (16743)

- Realised -28% - - - - - (16) (16)
Provision/(reversal) for ~ BEEEEE

ECLon; B/ (BE):

- Loan receivables -EUEH - - 68,078 s s S 68,078

- Trade receivables -EWE %S 633 52 - - (345) - 340

- Other receivables -HtENGE (12) (52) B) - - (65) (132)
Share-based payment  WRABEBZHFER

expense - - - - - 2819 2819
Interest expense HERX - - - - - 470 470
Additions to right-of-use ~ EEEEERE

assets - 45 3,980 - - - 4432
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

The Group's revenue from external customers by
location of operations and information about its
non-current assets by location of assets are detailed

10. 2 E R (@)
ih & & R

AEBRKZEMUES D KA
REPZHRGENREEME S
DZIFMBEELZERF RN

below: T
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REMREFEZ W FRBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET
PRC h
(including Hong Kong) (BEEE) 84,347 133,541 169 395
India E 705 333 - -
Indonesia EEEmE 36,921 52,687 - =
USA E B 6,033 5,311 - -
Others Hi 29 8,095 = =
128,035 199,967 169 395

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments
and deferred tax assets.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

11.

Revenue from major customers

Revenues from customers of corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group are as follows:

Customer A (note 1) BER(BiE1)
Customer B (note 1) BE L (K1)
Customer C (note 2) XER(Wit2)

note 1. Revenue from sales of clothes and beauty product
segment.

note 2: Revenue from processing and trading of used
computer-related components segment.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZHE
Interest on bank loan RITERZF A

Y

10. 7 HREH (@)

REFEEF 2R HE
RIEEFEMAEBR BB
10% 2EFWz=MT -
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
24,360 27,470
43,828 58,874
19,898 29,955

HiaE1: REEERRK KX

7 W3 -

0%

REmD

Bfatz: KB —FEMBBAGERE

BRESH Uk
1. BB R A

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

137 186

155 284

292 470
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group's
Hong Kong subsidiaries either did not have assessable
profit or had sufficient tax losses brought forward to
offset against current year's assessable profits.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
under the two-tiered profits tax regime, profits tax
rate for the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of
qualifying corporations established in Hong Kong will
be lowered to 8.25%, and profits above that amount
will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
made for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 as the Group's PRC subsidiary did not generate
any assessable profits during the years.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

12.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. i BHAX

2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FAET

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIEAF{ 1B — & B FIEH
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETRE - 198
Deferred tax EAET IR - 956
- 1,154
For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, S — == —4F

T-A=1+—BLLEE FEHM
BRI ARG E T HRR A
B REARKNEEELNERF
WAREERBRBEF KERF T
WR A BB AR A EEE AR
FE R & H

S —— —ET-—F
+-A=+—BILFE BEHM
SHMAH REBKILNE
&% 52,000,000 T 2 fE
ABEEMABHEHFAES
8.25% * M B 1B % & B8 2 % A 1§
R E16.5% s Fi ©

VTEBPEBEE_T__FR_F
4%+ -_A=+—HILEE
ERHPBECEFRSHRER RA
AAERG RN B R FRRE
FEAYTEELETMNER G
e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wrE MR MR

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—

The reconciliation between the income tax expense
and loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong

Profits Tax rate is as follows:

Loss before tax

Tax at the domestic income tax
rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not taxable

for tax purpose
Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of temporary difference

not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses

not previously recognised

Tax effect of two-tiered tax regime

Tax concession
Under-provision in prior years

Income tax expense

T+ A=T-HLEEE

12. FRS BB X (#)
FIEHRAXBEENG

RS

o DARR i B B 1B 2 R A8 2 ¥ B

NN
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
BB Rl ES 1B (57,354) (57,686)
BARMFTERE16.5%
—E - —%:16.5%)
HEZBIE (9,464) (9,518)
R ETee Rz
STHBBERE 367 1,320
ERBLEAFIER 2
WAZ & (796) (2,763)
RERZBIEBEZ
Mg & 25,290 11,611
FAERCERERY
mis 2 (14,497) 1,321
BRANAERERZ
MEEBINMBEE (882) (1,003)
FIEBMRS 2 HETE (9) (6)
IR R S (9) (6)
BEFERETR - 198
TSR X - 1,154
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

13.LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. K FEFIE

The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging/

(crediting) the following:

AEBAFEBEIDNAR

(FFA) AT BIREED:

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$°000
TER FHET
Directors’ emoluments EEMe 738 1,287
Other staff costs HM48 TA 4,291 6,342
Total directors’ emoluments and EEMeRHEMET
other staff costs (note) AR (f7a2) 5,029 7,629
Auditors’ remuneration ZE B0 B & 630 600
Cost of goods sold and services BRRXLZEEEmR
recognised as an expense AR 75 X 7N 112,036 174,624
Depreciation of property, plant and % - BMENMREZITE
equipment - 429
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  {FAEEEZITE 226 1,142
Impairment of right-of-use assets ERAEEEZRE - 2,895
Impairment of property, M BEREEZRE
plant and equipment - 1,890
Equity-settled share-based N EERD RER 2
payments (note) R (HEE) - 2,819
Provision/(reversal) for ECL on: TEHEEEE
& (g@E) -
— Trade receivables —EWE S RN 292 340
— Other receivables — H & W Bk IE 2,171 (132)
— Loan receivables — R E 38,140 68,078
Expenses related to short term lease %2 HAFH S +HRER X 60 -
COVID-19 related rent concessions B YT E K S &K H
received (COVID-19) /HEEHE &
R - (29)
Net foreign exchange losses M 3 B 185 5 3 50

note:

Equity-settled share-based payments of Nil (2021:
approximately HK$564,000) and Nil (2021: approximately
HK$2,255,000) were included in directors’ emoluments

and other staff costs respectively.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

Bt -

AR AL E R BEMZNHE (=
T —4F : 4564,0008 ) T (=
T~ — 4 :492,255,000/%8 5T) 7 7

FAEEMEREMETRA-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Employee benefits expense EERAMX
(including directors’
emoluments):

Salaries, bonuses and allowances %<  TE4L &2

Equity-settled share-based ARAEE R D R

payments (note 13) Bt 2 AT
(K1at13)
Retirement benefit scheme RIRAE R T BI 3K
contributions (note) (Htat)

note:

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the "MPF Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to the
MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries subject to
a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 per employee
and vest fully with employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

(BREEME) :

14. BER/AAX
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
4,845 4,616
- 2,819
184 194
5,029 7,629

HizE

AEERBEFEGRHERTRESFE
GO RMBEREARERREERES
HgHlE e 8 ([REEE
B AEBEHRESE 2 HX
DREFEZ5%AE (BUETE
AzBeeBETHBE,500%T)
MAAKEFARRESTEZEE
WK BREBEEME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (continued)
Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the year included zero (2021: one) director whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
in note 15. The emoluments of the remaining five
(2021: five) individuals are set out below (note):

Basic salaries, bonus and allowances
Bonus
Equity-settled share-based payments

TEAL

BN ANE N
Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

Their emoluments were within
the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

During years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

note: For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company’s five highest paid individuals included
six individuals due to the fifth and sixth individuals
received equal remuneration.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

HEARF & B4 Mo=RE
PARS 7R 8 BB AD 7

EARE R FT IR

£ 21,000,000/ 7T
1,000,001 8 TE
1,500,000/% 7T

14.EET/FB X (@)
TEEReHMAL
AEBRFRANRABRS &M
ATBEBREZEZ(ZZE - —%F:
—Z)EE HEHEMWMHENK 15
2RO MR-BTHRBZ(ZE
T—F RHB)ZEHEWEIOT
(BFsE) -

WMEZHEBINLAT 8 -

2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET THET
1,993 2,356

151 -

- 282

74 99

2,218 2,737
2022 2021

No. of No. of
employees employees
BEAH BE AR
5 5
BHE—_T_—— —FE-—F

T-A=+—HIFE A&£H
TERATALAEESFALX
NS (EAEMASKR AR
SEENRE ERBETRE

f& -

Fiag- 2T =-—F+= A
=t+—ALFE ARAA
ZBEESFATEEAABALT
BERAEERBERENBAL
FEEBR S EHN -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementg,
GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

15. EE /A K ER
(a) ESME

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ emoluments
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Executive directors
Mr. CHOW Hei Yin Terry
Mr. ZHU Yug

Independent non-executive
directors

Ms. HUANG Zhi (note)

Mr. MAN Yuan

Mr. MA Kin Ling

HITEF
REEEL
ATTRE

BUNHITEE
2n/M (HiE)

mEEE
SRERE

BZz-_Z_—_+=ZA
=+—HLEE

Contributions

Salaries to retirement
and other benefits  Share-based

benefits scheme payment Total
Fees 4R BIRER URHBAE  emoluments
He HthE R GRS EfZAR ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAT TEL TR TER
- 180 9 - 189
- 180 9 - 189
60 - - - 60
120 - - - 120
180 - - - 180
360 360 18 - 738
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Executive directors
Mr. CHOW Hei Yin Terry
Mr. ZHU Yug

Indlependent non-executive
directors

Ms. HUANG Zhi (note)

Mr. MAN Yuan

Mr. MA Kin Ling

Note:

There was no arrangement under which a
director or the chief executive waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. No
emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the directors or the chief executive of the
Company as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.

HITEF
AEERL
ATHRL

BUNHITEE
&0/ (i)

MBS
SRERE

Appointed on 31 March 2021

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

15. 55/ ER (&)

(a) ESEM <= (4)

Bz _ 2 _-_—%F+_-A8

=+—HIFE

Contributions

Salaries  to retirement
and other benefits  Share-based

benefits scheme payment Total
Fees ek BB A% A emoluments
ne LR RV FEIR ERAR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FEL TEL FET
- 180 9 282 471
- 180 9 - 189
45 - - 282 327
120 - - - 120
180 - - - 180
345 360 18 564 1,287

Frix: RZZEZ-Z—F=ZA
=t+—HEZE

HE_T-_—_FRrR-T=—
FH+—A=+—HILEFE"
VTHEREEHIZTHEAER
B ZE 3k [F] B AEE A & P
B 22 HE o 2N & [ N 4 1A (E ]
BEERARAESITHRA
BEXNME ERAEMANK
PN & B B ) 82 B - 3k

ERBEEREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

(b) Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in note 38, no other significant
transaction, arrangement and contract in
relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company and
the director’s connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

16. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year
ended 31 December 2022, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the reporting period
(2021: Nil).

15. 55/ ER (&)

(b) EERR G - ZHHEHN
ZERER
B B RE38FAT X B8 & SN MK
FRYMNAFEAIMER
AR A HEAETH B QA
BEFLEMEAEER
BEEMARRESERE
FXBEEALIRETERE
IEHEREEEAEAZE

KRR RHRELH-
16. R 2

BHE_FT_—_F+-_A=+—
AEFEYERMNSERZIRN
B B RS B A R AR IR
BREREEANRE(ZE=—
FoE|E)o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

based on the following data:

17.L0OSS PER SHARE 17. 8 RE1E
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per RRARBEBEABRBGEERELRR
share attributable to the owners of the Company is BSEE B IRBEU TEEE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Loss EE
Loss for the year attributable to ARETEFRER
owners of the Company for EEZARBES A
the purpose of basic loss per share &1k F N E5 18 (56,992) (58,753)
2022 2021
‘000 ‘000
T F &
Number of shares k5 8B
Weighted average number of ARETESRER
ordinary shares for the purpose of  E 18 2 Ei@MiK
basic loss per share InHEFEHE 1,524,045 1,154,471
No diluted loss per share is presented for the P 1) 2R 1T {58 B AR HE I AR A ]
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, as the BEERBESRBESE
outstanding share options did not have any dilutive RIWARGEAEERN  WEEZ
effect and was not included in the calculation of T FRZFTE—F+ A
diluted loss per share. =T BLEFEZEREEE

BIARZ5 -

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

Cost
At 1 January 2021
Additions

At 31 December 2021
and 1 January 2022
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2022

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At 1 January 2021

Charge for the year

Impairment

At 31 December 2021
and 1 January 2022
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2022

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ERER

W=B-—F+-A=+-A

RIMERRE

R-_E-—F—H—H
FRYH

i
R-_E-_—%+-A=+—H
—E-_F—-A—H

BN ER

W=B-=F+-A=+-A

REE
R=Z2-=%+-A=+-AH

R-_E-_—%+-A=+—H

18. W% -BMERKE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvement equipment
HEMX B Total
230 KBERRE nE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THET
= 443 443
2,314 - 2,314
2,314 443 2,757
- (1) (1)
2,314 44) 2,756
- 438 438
424 5 429
1,890 - 1,890
2,314 443 2,757
- (1) (1)
2,314 44) 2,756
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

19. RIGHT OF-USE ASSETS

At 1 January 2021
Additions
Depreciation
Impairment

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R-_ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—HRK

Depreciation

At 31 December 2022

19.CEFEEE

Leased

properties

HEYWE

HK$'000

FET

R-—ZETE-——F—H—H =
NE 4,432
e (1,142)
BE (2,895)
—E-—_4—HF—H 395
e (226)
R-_EBE-_—_F+-_HA=+—H 169

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$2,062,000
(2021: HK$3,366,000) are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of approximately HK$169,000
(2021: HK$395,000) as at 31 December 2022. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used

as security for borrowing purposes.

Depreciation expenses on
right-of-use assets

Impairment of right-of-use assets

Interest on lease liabilities
(included in finance costs)

COVID-19 Related rent concessions
received

164  SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7#efis AR AR

FREEEY
WERX
FREEEZRE
HEBBEMNFE
(T AR SR A )
2 Y CoVvID-19+8 7
HemE

RZE-_—_F+_A=+—8"
#92,062,0008 7L (ZE = —%F:
3,366,000 T) M EAEHR
M A P4 & E £9169,0007% 7T
—ZF ~ —4%:395,00080) #
BR-BREBEABREHEEED
EREZRIN THE 75 &5
ARG -FAEEETBIEARE
REHELR

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRERT TAET
226 1,142

- 2,895

137 186

- (29)
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20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wrE MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

RIGHT OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in
note 36(c).

As disclosed in note 3, the Group has early adopted
the Amendments to HKFRS 16: COVID-19 Related
Rent Concessions beyond June 2021, and applied
the practical expedient to all eligible rent concessions
received by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021.

For both years, the Group leases an office and
warehouse for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 2 years to 3.6 years
(2021: 2 to 3.6 years), but may have extension and
termination options as described below. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period
for which the contract is enforceable.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Unlisted investment: FELMKE :
At 1 January n—H—H
Acquisition 1 i

Share of result of associate

At 31 December

Name of entity Incorporation

LR NI 3

R+-_A=1+—H

Registered capital

EREH ot i Ak 2 ZMEX

Blue Pool Ventures Limited Samoa 1,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

ERABRARAA BED 1,0000 Bk E A

1XTHERKR

19. EHEEE (#)

FAHERReRE 2FBH
R 5E36(c) °

B A E AEBEE IR
AR B BT mEEAFE 16
RUBEIAR) RZFTEZ—F X
A LA #778 fm & &< 7R (COVID-19)
HEAESRE  YHAEERE
E-E-_—F+=-A=+—H
EFEWERHMEFTEGEHRN
HeRERBERERERE-

RABEEERN AEBEAEEXK
HERARAEREE-HEASD
HMETEHR A2FE36F (ZF
——F2F36%F) A HRE
EHR R 4% 1F (B A T XAt )
MEGR IR E R EEER I
BEZENRE MR R IEHT R
E AR FEE A B A
MERF ASBEEASAONTE
EVEEERATMITHER -

200 R—EBEQTZRE

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
THRT THET
133 -
(54) -
79 -
Percentage of
equity attributable  Principal
to the Group  activities
rEEE
EEEZE L TEEH
25% (2021: Nil)  Investment
holding
25% REERR

(ZF=—-%:%)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

20. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 20 R—EBERRZRE
(continued) (%)
The following table shows, the Group's share of TR ANEBD(HEAER
the amounts of the immaterial associate that are FEARZAERBERT 2R
accounted for using the equity method. I8 °
2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
At 31 December: Rt+t=ZRB=+—-8H:
Carrying amount of interest EmREE 79 —
Year ended 31 December: BEZE+-A=+-—H
LFE:
Share of loss from continuing EEREREEBELER
operations BB (54) -

Share of other comprehensive income J& 1 E b 2 m Y =5 - -

Share of total comprehensive income &5 2 M Wz B RE (54) -
21. DEPOSITS 21. &€
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Deposits with the Stock Exchange BRI
— Compensation fund —fEES 50 50
— Fidelity fund —HBRES 50 50
— Stamp duty deposit —HERZS 5 5

Contribution of guarantee fund paid Bt &FERRLEE
to Hong Kong Securities Clearing BRAR([BEBEE])

Company Limited ("HKSCC") ERESHK 50 50
Admission fee paid to HKSCC ENBBEELHE 50 50
205 205

22.INVENTORIES 22. 78
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Merchandises & 4,758 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables arising from
the ordinary course of
business of dealing in
securities transactions:

— Cash clients
Less: Allowance for ECL

Trade receivables from other
ordinary course of business,
other than business of dealing
in securities transactions

Less: Allowance for ECL

Deposits in brokerage firms

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Less: Allowance for ECL

Total trade and other receivables

AEXHBE
EENEKE S
AR
—-BHEeEP
B REMER
EEEE

Hih B EXHBEE
ELXNEERES
BEXHBERIN)

B EBEE

BEEE

RERAFZIES
Be  FANRER
H A & Y 5K

B FRHEE
EiRRE

e U & 5 Bk K S
H A & W R IR 4R B

23.ERNESIRFIREMER

MIE

2022 2021

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt FET FHET
(a) 8,407 4,956
(93) (64)

8,314 4,892

(b) 44,776 35,834
(812) (1,728)

43,964 34,106

- 4,430

(c) 18,197 18,617
(2,375) (204)

15,822 22,843

68,100 61,841
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(a) Trade receivables arising from the
business of dealing in securities

The Group seeks to maintain tight control
over its outstanding trade receivables and has
procedures and policies to assess its clients’
credit quality and defines credit limits for each
client. All client acceptances and credit limit are
approved by designated approvers according to

the clients’ credit worthiness.

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables
from clients and clearing house arising from
the ordinary course of business of securities
brokerage services are 2 trading days (2021: 2

trading days) after the trade date.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables arising
from the ordinary course of business of dealing
in securities transactions, based on trading date,

and net of allowance, is as follows:

0-30 days 0%30A

31-60 days 31260H
61-90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90R K E

Trade receivables due from cash clients are
secured by clients’ securities, which are publicly
traded equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The
fair values of the securities as at 31 December
2022 were approximately HK$123,389,000
(2021: approximately HK$19,180,000). As at
31 December 2022 and 2021, all balances were
secured by sufficient collateral on an individual

basis.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

23.ERNESIRFIREMER
IE (#)

(a) RHEEEXBEEZE

W& 5 R

AEBAREBEFER
Yl e B IR Wik
BREFABRFABEETFR
MEEERURATEER
FHEERBE -EATFPH
—EEREEREGH
BEEBHABRERFH
SEEL-

REEELRB 2B E
KERPELENEREF
LEEMESEFRNIESR
HEBHARSHHEZME
THEBE(ZZE-—F Mm@
RHH) -

EHERHEBERBZAREE
BBREL ZBKREZERR
(HBRBBER)BRER S B
HZ2| 2 fREe DT a0 T -

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRERT TET
77 4,575
1,602 3
317 3
6,318 311
8,314 4,892

EUWBRERFMNEKRE S
RERUBEEMES(REE
PHEEZ EWRAFES)
ERB -BFHER T
+ - A=+—HHQAFE
49 /123,389,000/ 7T (=
T~ — 4 :#919,180,000/8
L) RZE-_—_FRKR=-F
——F+-A=+—8" A
ERBHYEEREERTT
R mIERT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Trade receivables arising from the
business of dealing in securities
(continued)

In addition, the Group has a policy for
determining the allowance for impairment of
trade receivables without sufficient collateral
based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts and on
management’s judgement including the
creditworthiness, collateral and the past
collection history of each client.

In determining the recoverability of the trade
receivables, the Group considers any change in
the credit quality of the trade receivables from
the date the credit was initially granted up to
the reporting date and the fair values of the
collateral held.

The carrying amount of the Group's trade
receivables arising from the business of dealing
in securities are denominated in HKS$.

Trade receivables arising from other
businesses

The Group allows a credit period from 30 to 90
days (2021: 30 to 90 days) to its customers. The
ageing analysis of trade receivables arising from
other course of business other than business
of dealing in securities transactions, based on
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0%30H

31 - 60 days 31260H
61 — 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H Mk

23.ERNESIRFIREMER

FIH (#)
(a) RHEEBEXBELEZE

(b)

WE 5 R (&)

BN REERBEERE R
R WA A RT (A ERRR
BOREDMTEEEREN
HE (BRBEEPNIE
2 W m MR WG R )
EEARHEZRER DD
FEUE 5RO B R -

REERKEZERRZA
Yo B £ - AN B E B R W
BERFXEBVBEREESR
BEHEEEREBHILRE
EERMMFERRZA
FEZEREE-

AEBFREELFESTER
ZRERWE SEREANEEE
LA TCETE ©

HbXBEE2BKE
& BR7K

AEBEERETHEXKF30E90
B(ZZ-—%:30%90H)
Z2IEEH-BREFRHEE
BN BHMEBRARE
2 EWE SR (k&
HBERIBBERELHHZNZ
BREC DT T -

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TAET
5,798 10,352
5,160 7,757
8,023 % 192
24,983 8,805
43,964 34,106
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(b) Trade receivables arising from other

businesses (continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Credit
limits attributed to customers are reviewed twice

a year.

Details of impairment assessment of trade
receivables for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 are set out in note 6(c) to the

consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade
receivables arising from other business are

denominated in US$.

(c) Deposit, prepayments and other
receivables

Amount due from a subsidiary’s director of
approximately HK$3,170,000 (net of allowance
of HK$1,006,000) (2021: HK$4,717,000 (net of
allowance of HK$89,000)) was included in the
deposits, prepayments and other receivables.
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

23.ERNESIRFIREMER
IE (#)

(b) EtEBELEZERKRE

()

Z MR ()

AEEREMETAHER
AEtHtERErRP2ER
BV HAAEZEFLZE
ERE - BEFPESNHEERR
BEFmETMNK e

RBE_FT-_—_FK=F
—_—®+-_A=+—81
FERKE ZEREZRNBE
FEFBHNEGEES M BER
T EE6(0) ©

XY VR TES Y
e % R 3 e 7R OB
FEEHE

B ANFERHEAE
W SRR

FEW—HKBARZES
Z X IE#93,170,0005 7T (31
B #81,006,00008 ) (=
T —4F:4,717,0008 5T
(F0 Bk B #889,0008 L) ) B
A TBANREREA
FEUW IR - B & BB BB IR
BB NEAREREE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

24.LOAN RECEIVABLES

The ageing analysis of loan receivables based on the
remaining contractual maturity date:

0 — 90 days 0&90H
91 - 180 days 91&180H
181 — 365 days 1812365H

o REEEERREG

Less: Allowance for ECL

The Group’s loan receivables arose from the money
lending business.

The loan receivables are repayable in accordance
with the terms of the loan agreements and all loan
receivables are recoverable within 1 year (2021: 1
year).

The Group’s loan receivables contain clauses which
reserved the right at sole discretion to demand
immediate repayment at any time irrespective
of whether the borrowers have complied with
the covenants and met the scheduled repayment
obligations.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s loan
receivables are denominated in HK$ and carried at
fixed effective interest rate ranging from 8% to 10%
(2021: 8% to 10%) per annum and with the terms
of 1 year (2021: 1 year).

24 EWE R
FEWERHER S TERGE
SEEEERTE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
17,434 170,978
38,512 39,640
102,519 77,407
158,465 288,025
(57.312) (169,012)
101,153 119,013

AEBEBzERWERKBRESR
%%0

EWE R REBEE R & Z &
REE AFERKERAR—
FAWRE (ZT=Z—F:—4F) -

AEBRUERHBRE 2E
R TE B E A7 B ) B SR B R 5 X
HRER R IRF TwmfERAZS
BEETRHENMEBITREMNER
BfE-

RZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—H"
REBMHEKREZTABITEE
RETEBRFEMNENF8% =
10% (2 -—F: 8% £10%)
AR CHBRAE—F(ZT=—
F:—4F)o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 5. BRAFEFABRZZER
BE
2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, A& Fh 2 AN %
at fair value BRATE 74,974 87,284
The equity securities listed in Hong Kong are held REBLETZBRAZFTIAR
for trading purpose and are measured at FVTPL in SENMBEALREEENE
accordance with HKFRS 9. The investments in listed HwEERFIRIZAFEF AR
equity securities that offer the Group the opportunity BB RAEBEIREKRBER
for return through dividend income and fair value BREWARRAFERZESD
gains. They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate. WO EMBRAFZBLHRE -ZER
The fair values of listed securities are based on BEWEEEIHANES K |
current bid prices. MEFNATFEIEREBAI®
BABERE-
26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 26. RE& RBITHEER
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Bank balances RITHER
- Segregated accounts for dealing —EERFEEZ
with clients” money (note) BALRPE (K7:F) 5,742 7,223
— House accounts —BBEEP 26,818 52,859
Cash on hand FEES 30 16
32,590 60,098
Note: The Group maintains segregated accounts with Brag: RNEBRBA ©REER
authorised financial institution to hold client money BYRP URBEEKA
in the ordinary course of business. BhHEEFE®-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—

26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)

Represented by: =k
— Client accounts (note)
— House accounts

—BEERF

note:

As at 31 December 2022, include in bank balance -
client accounts of approximately HK$5,742,000 (2021:
approximately HK$7,223,000) was money deposited by
clients in the course of business of dealing in securities.
The Group has recognised the corresponding amount in
trade payables (note 27). The Group currently does not
have a legally enforceable right to offset these payables
with deposit placed and use the clients’ monies to settle its
own obligations.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank balances of the Group are denominated in the
following currencies:

RMB AR
AUD SBIT
us$ X7
HK$ BT

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations. However, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

—EPFERP (M)

wrE MR MR

S-oFt-A=t+-BILEE

26. R RBITHER (#)

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
5,742 7,223
26,848 52,875
32,590 60,098

Bret

R—_FE-_—_F+=-A=+—8 %5t
ANIRTTHE B — B PR 45,742,000
B (2T = —F:47,223,0008
TL)REFPRESRX XK BEF
T)\Eﬁiéf% AEEERENES

KR ERAEBERIE (5F27) o &
%liﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%/z&T%ﬂﬁﬁ’M&*ﬂ'
AEBRT AR EKEZZERMTR
REFEREFPHRERITHEER-

R|EHR NEB2HE MR
R T HEEEHE

171

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000

TRRT TET

51 66

- 6

4,369 3,757

28,170 56,269

32,590 60,098
ARBHIBBINE Ty /REB T F

B SN DE B I R 1) K A B - S [ K
NEEBRE -AM AEEE
NFFBRBERERSINE X
MIRITHARBLBRREME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

27. ENEZRFREMEN

FIE

2022 2021
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
ligz3 FET FHET
Trade payables arising from the HREHFRXZEEEKZ
ordinary course of business of BEEBBREPES
dealing in securities transactions: HYEfT & SR :
— Cash clients —-ReRP (a) 5,397 11,823
Trade payables from purchase of R E B & %%
goods arising from other (BHFERXHEEEK
ordinary course of business, BRON) BIEHIEE
other than business of BmES B ER
dealing in securities transactions & SR (b) 55,701 40,704
Other payables and H A & T R0IE K
accrued expenses FERT R X 13,428 12,976
Provision for reinstatement cost 18 R AKX AN B 45 (c) 200 200
74,726 65,703

(a) Trade payables arising from the business
of dealing in securities

The trade payables balances arising from
the ordinary course of business of securities
brokerage services are normally settled in two
trading days after the trade date except for
the money held on behalf of clients at the
segregated bank accounts which are repayable
on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, an
ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the nature of this business.

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade

payables arising from the business of dealing in
securities are denominated in HKS$.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

(a) RHEEEXBEENE
18 Z IR

EHFRLERBEBEEXSEA
BPELENENE SR
EHR—BRRXHHEMBMEM
BERZEAEE EREP
RBILRTEPBEAZE
CRABFEEE - BRARF
EERA ERREBNK
Bk oML EFEINE
B W ERBERE DT

AEEREEFEEERK
ZENEZERFOEEE
ABTEHE .



27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(b) Trade payables arising from other

()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

r B B 05 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

27. BENESRARKREMER

A (&)

businesses

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on
the invoice date, is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0%308
31 - 60 days 31260H
61 - 90 days 612908
Over 90 days 908 K k

The credit period on purchase of goods ranges
from 30 to 60 days (2021: 30 to 60 days).

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade
payable arising from other business are
denominated in US$.

Movement of the provision for (c)
reinstatement cost

At 1 January m—HA—H
Provision for reinstatement cost £ N HER 2 18 R AR AN B

recognised during the year

At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—H

(b) Hib R FrELENEN

B 2 IR

REZHHZENE K
RZEREBEDTEIAT

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TR
7,578 8,390
4,572 4,112
8,118 702
35,433 27,500
55,701 40,704

BEEREEHN T30
608 (—ZE - —4% :30%60
A) -

AEBREEMBERZE

NE 5 ERRNREE N E
JLRT{E

BEERERBAEE 2E B

2022 2021

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

200 -

- 200

200 200
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28.FHEABE
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments
BEAEMR BEEEAREAE
2022 2021 2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TRT TER TRET

Within one year —FR 1,382 1,442 1,310 1,304
In the second to E_EREREF

fifth years, inclusive (BREEEMTF) 767 2,148 752 2,062

2,149 3,590 2,062 3,366

Less: Future finance charges B RANBER (87) (224) N/A  NATER

Present value of lease obligations ~ HEETRE 2,062 3,366 2,062 3,366

Less: Amount due for settlement 35 : PM121E A R 2

within 12 months (shown HeEme®
under current liabilities) (RRBEaE
BTE5) (1,310) (1,304)
Amount due for settlement 1218 A 1% 21| 59
after 12 months BEMEE 752 2,062
All lease liabilities are denominated in HK$. FrEREaBEHANETE.
The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease HERARMHEAGENEEERTN
liabilities is 5% (2021: 5%). RES5% (ZE-—F:5%)-¢
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29. BANK LOAN

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wrE MR MR

29. RITER

T+ A=T-HLEEE

Secured bank loan

Scheduled payment terms of
bank loan contain a repayment on
demand clause (shown under

current liabilities):

Within one year

More than one year,
but within two years

More than two years,
but within five years

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
BEMIRITERK 2,177 2,905
RITERZEEIER
RN EEEE
ERBRZIEK
(IATREER):
—FK 776 728
MR —FENHBAMNTE
824 776
HBEAMEBETNBARE
577 1,401
2,177 2,905
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29. BANK LOAN (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in HKS.

The average interest rate at 31 December 2022 was
6.07% (2021: 6.07%).

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021 the Group’'s bank
loan was guaranteed by (i) Mr. Ma Pun Fai, a director
of a subsidiary of the Company and (ii) the HKMC
Insurance Limited of HK$3,420,000.

The Group's bank borrowings contain clauses which
give the banks the right at their sole discretion
to demand immediate repayment at any time
irrespective of whether the Group has complied with
the covenants and met the scheduled repayment
obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
loan covenants. Its repayments up to date are in
accordance with the scheduled repayments of the
term loans. The Group does not consider that the
banks will probably exercise their discretions to
demand repayments so long as the Group continues
to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group's management of liquidity risk are set out in
note 6(d) to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

29.8R1ITEF (@)

AEBEENRETENE T
&

R—EBE-_—_F#+=-A=+—~8
BB EA6.07% (ZFE=—
F:6.07%) °

RZEBE-_FRER T - —F
+ +—H XEBE 2R

TERIBOARRR]—FEKE
RAEIZ —BREEBWELER
(INEBEBRBRARRAAZ
3,420,000 JTHEAR

AEERITEREMHEET T
mASERAEETHBENRE
BEETRENERE ML &M
wIERR AR TRITE2EBIBHER
ERAREBEREERAER -

AEEEHERERLGDEST
ERLH-HBEHAMERTD
RERE RN ERFERAETT
AEERRREASEEEN
BREMRE  BRITAKRAEETT
FEHEREFNBEE - ARAA
SERDESRRELNE—
THBHENGEE P HHRERME
6(d) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The following are the deferred tax assets recognised
by the Group.

Provision
of ECL
FHEE
BEEE
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2021 N_E-_—F—H—H 979
Charge to profit or loss for the year RAFEREBRR (Fit12)
(note 12) (956)
At 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022 R—F-_—F+=-_A=+—8H"
and 31 December 2022 —E--F—H—BAK
—E__F+-_A=+—H 23

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$386,550,000
(2021: HK$238,630,000) that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. Except for the tax losses of approximately
HK$2,336,000 (2021: HK$4,079,000) will be expired
in 5 years from the year of origination, the remaining
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

30. EEBHIBEE

PATR 3 7K &= B R 52 A 3B ST 77 IR

REmERR NEEFAIHEE
HiEERB &R A B REAHIE
/518 #9386,550,0008 T ( = &
— —%:238,630,000/F L) ° i
B %&&RF e e TE R
W ZEBEEBERRELENRIE
BE -BRBIEEE%2,336,000
BT (ZZF=—%:4,079,000
BIT) G BRI FEE R AEE
HAON - R TR IAE BRI | R B4
%o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B
2022 2021
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares Amount shares Amount
EEREA c ] LEREA &8
'000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
i THER T’ FET
At 1 January and 31 December, R—H—HBRK
ordinary share of HK$0.006 +ZA=+—-8"
0.006/8 7T 2 & i@ 100,000,000 600,000 100,000,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRMR:
At 1 January, ordinary share of % —A—H " 0.006
HK$0.006 B EBIK 1,492,937 8,958 912,937 5,477
Issue of shares upon exercise of ~ FAT{F BB AR B ES 21T
share options (note /) Bin (Hriti) 45,600 273 = =
Placing of shares (note /i) BRINEE (Heti) - = 580,000 3,481
At 31 December, ordinary share R+ -A=+—H"
of HK$0.006 0.006/ T2 L8 it 1,538,537 9,231 1,492,937 8,958
notes: Wi -

0]

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
45,600,000 options were exercised at the exercise
price of HK$0.078 per share, resulting in the issuance
of 45,600,000 new shares of HK$0.006 each.
Proceeds from exercising the share options amounted
to approximately HK$3,556,000.

On 23 April 2021, the Company and the placing agent
entered into the placing agreement pursuant to which
the placing agent has conditionally agreed to place,
on a best effort basis, to not less than six placees,
for up to 580,000,000 placing shares at the placing
price of HK$0.1 per placing share (the “Placing”).
The placing of new shares was completed on
2 August 2021. The Company received net proceeds,
after deducting the related expenses and the other
related expenses, from the placing amounted to
approximately HK$57,997,000.
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(i)

(i)

HE_ZT-_—_F+=-A=+—
B IE & & © 45,600,00017 B A%
EIRITEEESIR0.0788B L ETT
i BB B 1745,600,0000 & I%
T {E0.00678 TR T A% (9 - 171
8 IR B P15 B I8 49 /43,556,000
IT e

RZEZ—FHA=+=8"
RARBEEERBEILEE
WE B EEREEGK
HRAEBEZEBE2NEERT
VPRANBERRARERZ E
580,000,000 fie & i 5 - B2 &
BEABREERD0.1ET ([H
Bl FREER=-Z = —
FNAZATK AR EUE
e & P 15 BOIBVF B8 (KL HBR AR
RS REMEERY) ALY
57,997,000 T



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeqguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maximise the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently
by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. The Group
will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts,
redemption of existing debts or selling assets to
reduce debts.

The externally imposed capital requirements for
the Group are: (i) in order to maintain its listing
on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public
float of at least 25% of the shares; (i) to meet
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing
borrowings; and (iii) minimum capital and liquid
capital requirements by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, the Group complied with the above liquid
capital requirements.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars
monthly on substantial share interests showing the
non-public float and it demonstrates continuing
compliance with the 25% limit throughout the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would
permit the bank to immediately call borrowings.
There have been no breaches in the financial
covenants of any interest-bearing borrowing for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

31. R A& (&)

AEEREREANBERSR
EAREERKBERENRIRE
BREEHRESERERR
[O] R &% KAE

AEEEERBEEEAKRAN
Ko B 38 Bl AN 9 4E A 2L B 2 B
BARE - AEHBBIRKMK
B BITHE D BB BB | BA K
BOMER BERAEBRE
EEENRLPEHHTAEF
B REBERER-

HNERE AR E BN 2 & A E K
B () BEFREB TR LT
- -HERBNAREREAT
LR HI25% ;5 (i) W B 5B
fEEREM M B B HE: i) &
BEFRAEEHERZES®
RENZEEARRBESE
j‘zo

BE - T _—_K_ZT-—%
+ZA=+—BLLEE K&£H
BETLEARHESE K-

rEESBAERNHBFPFELRRE
NEHBIFLARFREEHZ
FERMHEZRE BREBTAN
SERBE_FT__FK=F
9+ -_A=Z+—HLEFE
N—EHFE25% 2 FIRBTE -

W& R YR R{T#5 A 7 BD
WEEE - REE T -__FK
T —f+ZA=+—HLt
FE -AEBVEERTMATE
BEZUBRHE-
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders at the special general meeting held
on 23 December 2021, the Company adopted the
new Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) and
to terminate the old Share Option Scheme ("Old
Scheme"”) for the purpose of rewarding participants
who have contributed to the Group and to provide
incentives to work towards the success of the
Company.

Under the Scheme, the Company's board of
directors may, at its discretion, grant options to
eligible persons (including directors, employees and
consultants) to subscribe for the Company’s shares.

The exercise price of the share options under
the Scheme is determined by the directors of the
Company, and must be at least the higher of: (a) the
average of the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the relevant date of offer of the share
options; (b) the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the relevant date of offer of the share
options, which must be a business day; and (c) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

32. AR HER 2K

IR ERE 2 BRER S
BREARABRER-_T-—%F
T A +=BETHRRE
BIRE L@BBZRHER ANAA
Ranzh Bt & ([%st8])
W #& 1 E W IR 8 ([ & 5T
) UERBHAKEFEHLE
Ble2@mE WHBRE/SRR
BlLZRIN M%7 e

RIEREE ARAEFETH
BREASERAL (RIEE
5B RER) E T RN
REAR AR -

A Bl ERETEEAAR
AEFET YAELRUTKR
2E QEXFHREREEY
EMAAEEXERBIME
RHREXRBLZARR KD F
R HE: () EHEEREZED
EHMRBERXMERRERSH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all Options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% in
nominal amount of the aggregate of Shares in issue
on the date of adoption (“Scheme Mandate Limit").

Options previously granted under the Old Scheme
or any other share option schemes of the Company
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with the terms or exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate Limit as renewed.

At any time, the maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options which
then has been granted and have yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not, in the absence of
Shareholders’ approval, in aggregate exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time.

An offer of the grant of an option may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of grant together with
a remittance of HK$1 by way of consideration for the
grant thereof. An option may be exercise during such
period as the Board may in its absolute discretion
determine, save that such period shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of grant.

32. R AER 2 I (&)

IR A E 2 B IR T 8
(&)

RIBZAAE RARRBEME A
BB MR LN ARBK
B RITERABETHRS KD
HEARTREBRMBHCE
BT EEEMN10% ([5 S
RERE]) -

ERMRBEEXNARFEM
HAth B8 BB 5T 81 R b 2 BB A
(BREBIFET SR W RITE
B ERBACTEZER
BN EEEHTERERER
BATHEEAR-

A 0] B FR) 72 R AR AR SR L B
BT RIFEZET 8 kAR RME
] E A P AR ST &I R BB R
TIEZ T B AR RITER A
FTRHROIRODZESHBEAEHXT
BHEBITEEEITRN30% -

BHBEREZEHAREKER
HiEET28H MM - I X 1178
TEARH BN ZHE - BRE
ARESEREBYHNEEE
EZHRATTEE - HA R B S
R AR A SEB 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

The following table discloses the details of the
Company's share options and the movements during
the year ended 31 December 2022:

32. R AER 2 I (&)
UREEE 2 BIRESE

(%)

TEREBRAQNABREMNFS
UWEREBEE T -+ A
ST RLFEANE

Outstanding at Outstanding at
1.1.2022 Cancelled/lapsed 31.12.2022
Exercise price RZBzZf Grant Exercise  during the year RZBZZf
Category Date of grant per share Exercise period Notes —F-R  during the year  during the year RERZE/ T-A=1-R
£5l b=k ERORE TRAR ik HATE RERRH RERTE % HAGE
Director
iz
CHOW Hei Yin Terry 8 April 2021 0.1066 8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023 @ 6,304,000 - - - 6,304,000
REE “2--¥MANA “R--#MANRE
ZEIZEMALR
HUANG Zhi 8 April 2021 0.1066 8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023 @ 6,304,000 - - - 6,304,000
B “E--£@ANA ZE--£MANRE
ZEIZEMALR
ZHU Yugi 8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 ) 7,607,000 = - (7,607,000) =
RER ZZ-ZERANA ZZ-ZERANEE
ZEC_FRALA
MAN Yuan 8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 ) 7,607,000 = - (7,607,000) =
#E “Z-RERANA FRANRE
nk Stk 3Rl
MA Kin Ling 8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 [l 7,607,000 = = (7,607,000) -
£ 44 “Z-RERANA ZE-RERANRE
Employee 8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 i) 45,642,000 - (45,600,000) (42,000) -
E8 “ZZZERANR “ToZERAN\RE
“3ICFRALA
8 April 2021 0.1066 8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023 @) 50,432,000 - - - 50,432,000
“R--EmANE ZR--EMANEE
Z3-ZERALA
131,503,000 - (45,600,000 (22,863,000) 63,040,000
Exercisable at the end of the year RERT{{E 63,040,000
Weighted average exercise price METHTREE HK$0.091757T HKS0.10667 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

The following table disclose the details of the
Company's share options and the movements during
the year ended 31 December 2021:

32. R AER 2 I (&)

UREEE 2 BRETE
(&)
TREBARRERENTS
UWEREBEZE_ZE-—F+ A
—t—HIFEANE

Outstanding at Outstanding at
1.1.2021 Cancelled/lapsed 31.12.2021
Exercise price i3 Grant Exercise  during the year RZB=-%
Category Date of grant per share Exercise period Notes —A-H  duringthe year  during the year REREHE/ t=A=1-A
LY REER ERORE TRAR it HATE REREH RERTE %% HAGE
Director
iz
CHOW Hei Yin Terry 8 April 2021 0.1066 8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023 @) - 6,304,000 - - 6,304,000
A%E “R-£MANR “R--¥MANRE
“ECZEMALA
HUANG Zhi 8 Aer 2021 0.1066 8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023 @ = 6,304,000 = - 6,304,000
& Z2--£mANA Z3-EMANRE
“3ICERALA
ZHU Yugi 8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 ) 7,607,000 - - - 7,607,000
A5 “E-FFRANR “R-RERANRE
“E--FRALA
MAN Yuan 8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 ) 7,607,000 - - - 7,607,000
e ZE-REIANA ZECRERANRE
“3ICFRALA
MA Kin Ling 8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 ) 7,607,000 - - - 7,607,000
S “E-FFRANR
Employee 8 May 2020 0.0780 ) 45,642,000 - - - 45,642,000
&5 “RCRERANA
“E--FRALA
8 April 2021 0.1066 8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023 @ = 50,432,000 - - 50,432,000
“F--5MANR “F--§¥MANRE
“3ICERALA
Consultants 17 April 2019 04720 17 April 2019 to 16 April 2021 (¢ 76,075,000 - - (76,075,000) -
Bf ZE-NEMATER ZE-NEMATLAE
ZEC-FRATAA
144,538,000 63,040,000 = (76,075,000) 131,503,000
Exercisable at the end of the year RERTTH 131,503,000
Weighted average exercise price NETHAER HK$0.2854%ET  HK$0.10663 7T HK$0.0917% T
notes: Bat -

(a) 63,040,000 options granted on 8 April 2021 are
immediately vested at the date of grant. The closing
price of the shares of the Company immediately
before the grant date of the share options on 8 April
2021 was HK$0.1066 per share.

(a) RZEZ—FMNANHAKH
2.63,040,00017 B IR #E B R I
B HA BN R o X BB AR A
HEHBZAARRRDR
T —FMHANBZKTE 7%
FRZ0.1066# 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

notes:

(b)

76,070,000 options granted on 8 May 2020 are
immediately vested at the date of grant. The closing
price of the shares of the Company immediately
before the grant date of the share options on 8 May
2020 was HK$0.078 per share.

1,521,500,000 options granted on 17 April 2019 are
immediately vested at the date of grant. The closing
price of the shares of the Company immediately
before the grant date of the share options on 17 April
2019 was HK$0.0236 per share. As a result of the
share consolidation on 26 March 2020, the number of
options and exercise price of the share options were
adjusted from 1,521,500,000 options to 76,075,000
options and HK$0.0236 per share to HK$0.4720 per
share respectively.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

2. URBAER AR (&)
IR A E 2 B IR T 8
(&)

Hrat -

(b)

R-E-_FTFRANEHARE
276,070,00015 BE IR #E B A I
0B EBD S B o R R AR A
BREBEZAARRRBRMHRZ
E_TZFERANBZUTES
FH0.078B T

RZZE—-—NFMA++EBA
% H 21,521,500,00017 B8 A%
EERBREBABHEEE-
EEBREREBB AR
ANRABHR T —HhhFENA
++tB 2T EREEA0.0236
BlL-ER T _ZTF=A
—t+RNEBRDEHZTE B
BREEHE REREZITEES
B E1,521,500,00010 A E A
76,075,000 } B3 & 1%0.0236
BITHEE ABER0.47208 T
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE
32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 2.URBAER I (&

Equity-settled share option scheme UREEE 2 BRETE
(continued) (&)
45,600,000 share options were exercised during REZE T - -F+ - A
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). The =+—HI1I¥E" 45,600,000
weighted average share price at the date of exercise MEREETE (ZE=—F:
for share options exercised during the year ended m) BHE_T__F+=A
31 December 2022 was HK$0.078. The options —t+t—HRLEEECETEERE
outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted RITEBHOMEFEORER
average remaining contractual life of 0.25 (2021: 1) 0.078B L - M FERMAKRITE
year. During the year ended 31 December 2022, no ZHEBRENMETARGE LD
share option was granted. During the year ended 31 HIR RO25F (=T = — &
December 2021, 63,040,000 share options with fair —F) BE_ZE_—_F+=A
value of approximately HK$2,819,000 were granted. =+ BLEFE BEREHBE

E-BHE-_TE-_—F+=-H
=+—HIEFE  63,040,00013
NFE# 52,819,000 7T 7 BE
DR -

These fair values were calculated using the Binomial EZE’“$TEET§% 18 7\ HA
Option Pricing model. The inputs into the model are EEEAGTE - ZER A AR
as follows: S NS

2021
Weighted average share price Nt HRE 0.1060
Weighted average exercise price NEFHITEE 0.1066
Expected volatility TEH R 18 86%
Expected life i‘ﬁﬁi@% 2
Risk free rate 2\ gz 1) 2= 0.14%
Expected dividend yield TEHE g B W s X 0%
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z—=%

ZoE+Z A=+ -BLEFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. The assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options
are based on management’s best estimate. Changes
in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

There was no market vesting condition or non-
market performance condition associated with the
options granted.

Share options granted to consultants were incentives
for helping the Group expand its business network,
acquire and explore new business projects and
opportunities. The fair value of service received
in return for share options granted could not be
estimated reliably and as a result, the fair value is
measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

32 URGAER 2N (&

IR EAEE 2 B IRES S
(&)

T8 HA IR 0 AR SRR A A (&
1A B P #E DD 4 1 39 ) 64 4 A &
8) URELAHMAEEMNE
HA R ROR 08 3R B (E (] S E) 1F
HAE - FAHI R EMFE%Q
RELE ARFEBRENRD

BER& Eﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁm?&ﬁ
it TEBRAZ2BEBRNEME
LRI B R E R FEMGET-

BEESREBREMARNT
55 BRI RIET IS RIBIGRMT -

ETEBRZEREDERKRS
EAEEBAHEZEBASL K
BRYEREBER R#EN
H2E) o BIMERE X H B AR A T Uk
B RBN R FETEREMG
FOEE AFELKE2EDR
HEREN A TEFTZ



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementg,
GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

33.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 3. XD A Z M B AR N TR KR
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BB E
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) AR \) 2 B # AR R 3=
Company
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR 2K E 179 179
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and Ee BNRER
other receivables = e 3,894 4,966
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE W BT /BB~ B FR IR 93,496 90,586
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTHE R 1,189 41,407
98,579 136,959
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued expenses and FEETFR &
other payables HAth & 7 FRIR 3,314 3,285
Amounts due to JE - B B A B FR B
subsidiaries 27,696 35,668
31,010 38,953
Net current assets REBEEFE 67,569 98,006
Net assets EEFH 67,748 98,185
Capital and reserves MR K # e
Share capital N 9,231 8,958
Reserves ke 58,517 89,227
Total equity mrEs 67,748 98,185
The financial statements were approved and MHHRERENR_TE_=F=H
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on St+—BEESgHERKRE
31 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf by: T - WHTINEEFKRESE:
ZHU Yuqi CHOW Hei Yin Terry
KFEZF BB
Director Director
EE EZE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

(b) Reserve movement in the Company

At 1 January 2021 RZE--%-7-A

Loss and total comprehensive income AEEEERZENRLE
for the year

Placing of shares (note 31) RORE (f1731)

Share options lapsed BREXN

Recognition of equity-settled share ERURELEL R
based payments (note 32) BEWR N (W)
At 31 December 2021 and RZB--%t-A=1-H
1 January 2022 R=F-Z£-R-H
Loss and total comprehensive income TEEBERZENGER
for the year

Issue of share upon exercise of share options FMTEERES %R
(note 31) (W31

Share options lapsed BRERM

At 31 December 2022 R-B--F+-A=1-A

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

33. XD A 2 M BMRR TR R

w2 (&)

OENEE L

Share
Share  Contributed options
Premium surplus reserve
R aE AARR  BRERS
(note 34(b)  (note 34(b)  (note 34(b)
i) (i) (v)  Accumulated
(FE4m) (Kb (B losses Total
(i) (i) ) 2 ER an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL AL ThL ThL
70,293 522,104 18,996 (558,356) 53,037
- - - (19,694) (19,694)
53,065 - - - 53,065
- - (16,737) 16,737 -
- - 2819 - 2819
123,358 522,104 5,078 (561,313) 89,227
- - - (33,993) (33,993)
4,759 - (1,476) - 3,283
- - (783) 783 -
128,117 522,104 2,819 (594,523) 58,517




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(1)

(1)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in
excess of their par value per share and
after deduction of capitalisation issue and
issuance costs of shares. Pursuant to the
Companies Law of the Bermuda, funds in
the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Other capital reserve

Other capital reserve represents the
difference between the nominal value of
the share capital and the share premium
of the subsidiaries at the date on which
they were acquired by the Group and the
nominal value of the share capital issued as
consideration for the acquisition.

wrE MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—

S-oFt-A=t+-BILEE

(a) ~EE

AEBEEBELEREE
REA B R 2 K

%&Zﬁ/\$§\7ﬁ%@%£

(b) RBEZHERBEMN
() K17

KR aEEDERESR
BEREEZERETR
7 EEHBRERLET
N BT AT EE
2B -REABRER
AE AR RIRMDRE
ENESAIDKTAR
AR HEEEEES
K E B ARAKE
BE—MREBBEFRE
B2 &

(i) BEMELXFE

HMEARFERHIERA
SEWENBARZH
(RN=NCI A &N g h)
mEEEEERKREZ
REMBFITHRAEE
ZE®B-

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4%

191



192

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wn & B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

34. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(continued)

(1)

(iv)

(v)

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the
difference between the nominal value of
the share capital issued by the Group and
the net asset value of subsidiaries acquired
through an exchange of shares pursuant to
the reorganisation.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 4(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share options reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to
directors, employees and consultants of the
Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for equity-settled
share-based payments in note 4(o) to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

34. f#f&E (|)
(b) FEEZHEERBEHN (&)

(iif) A & Br

BABRBNEARED
BITRAHMERRES
#H 2 18 X A e e Y
MEAREEFENE
B e

(iv) 225t iy

BEHEEEMARR
BRI EBMBRERE
HEHSNE ZHE o L
BRI G M RRI T
A(b) FT 8L A & 5T R BE
B e

(v) FERERE

BREREBLIRRT
AEEES EENME
B ARTTEBBENE R
HAEET BB R FE
RIS MR
4(0) MBI AR EE IR A
Eift 2 NRPTRAE S
ATEUR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 5. X RFREEMBATZHF
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 15
Details of principal subsidiaries of the Company at KATEENREB QTR EREH
the end of the reporting period are set out below. RZFHBEYWT -
Place of Proportion ownership
incorporation  Class of interest held
and operations  shares held Issued by the Company
Name of subsidiary A fi ki share capital ~ ALEHEZEEE  Principal activities
il Pk Lg% g5l ERfTRE G Eidl] IEXH
2022 2021
Directly held B 75 -
China Guoxin SunCorp Financial  British Virgin Ordinary Us$100 70% 70% Investment holding
Holdings Limited Island (“BVI")
THACHESRARERAT EBRLHS([R TRR 100%7 RELERK
BEZEER])
WELL SMOQTH LIMITED BvI Ordinary US$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
ABRAER  EBR 10,000%70 RERR

Indirectly held BZ# 5 -

SUNCORP GLOBAL LIMITED Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Trading of telephones and
related products
HERRARAA (3 Lk BT SENEBERES
Worldwide Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Processing and trading of
(Hong Kong) Limited used computer-related
components
BRETHE (BR)BRAA  BR Rk 187 “TERABANRER
CASHCOW FINANCE (HK) LIMITED Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 100% 100% Money lending business
PRiEE (BR)BRAR 3 LRk 10,000,000 T nEEH
Suncorp Securities Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$76,000,000 100% 100% Provision of securities
brokerage, placing and
underwriting services
HEEFARDA 30 LER 76,000,000/ ¢ REESEL KER
2L
BILLION MAX INTERNATIONAL ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100% 100% Sales of clothes and beauty
LIMITED products
HRARERAH Bk Lk 100787 HEREREAEm
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

35.

36.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the years end 31 December
2022 and 2021, or at any time during the years end
31 December 2022 and 2021.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transaction

Equity-settled share-based payment

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
equity-settled share-based payment expense of
approximately HK$2,819,000 was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flow were, or future
cashflows will be classified in the Group's
consolidated statement of cash flows from
financing activities.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

35.

36.

ARABREEMBLRRZHF
5 (40

ARBEERR ERATIIARSE
BzHBARBAKE XA
HEEELETERE -KARQTA
EEZER JIHEMHMERT
ZHAEHH RN IR

REBEE-E-_—FRK T~ —
F+-_A=+—BIEFEEXRK
HE T _—_H#x_ZT_-—
+ - A=+—BIEFEREM
BrRE - S H B A R R T
BfES-

RERETRERME

(a) EXFHERS

URA G E R BB
Z 1%

HE-_Z-_—F+ = A
=+—BHLEE URAEKE
ERMDAER ZNARAX
#) 52,819,000/ T Th IA 47
EHEmAFER-

MEFHELE2AGY
iR

TRFLAAEERXRARE
APBNAEESY BRRE
FOFREe B MERBA
EEMBREDAEERE
ERHARREREFR
AEEGEEHREERERNA
DHEREADELECZE

f&°

(b)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementg,
GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE

36.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 36. FEHERERMET (&)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEETBELE cBEY
financing activities (continued) Bk (&)
Lease
Bank loan liabilities Total
RITER HEESE Mt
(note 29) (note 28)
(BFzE29) (KFzE28)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET FETT
At 1 January 2022 W-_ZE-_—_F—A—H 2,905 3,366 6,271
Interest charged BB S 155 137 292
Interest paid EAE (155) (137) (292)
Financing cash flows BMERERE (728) (1,304) (2,032)

At 31 December 2022 i
+-A=+—H 2,177 2,062 4,239
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 36. B BEERERMET (&)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEETBELE cBEY

financing activities (continued) Bk (&)
Lease
Bank loan liabilities Total
RITER HESE @st
(note 29) (note 28)
(FftEE29) (PF3E28)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 WZE-—F—F—H 3,584 675 4,259
Interest charged BB S 284 186 470
Interest paid EAE (284) (186) (470)
COVID-19 Related rent B YCOVID-1916 8
concessions received Herz - (29) (29)
Financing cash flows MERERE (679) (1,512) (2,191)
Other changes: Hh 2
Additions to lease NEHEERE
liabilities - 4,232 4,232
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F
+-A=+—H 2,905 3,366 6,271

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—ZT_—F+_-_A=+—HILLFE
36.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 36. 4B REREBRMET (@)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEZHERHEE
Amounts included in the consolidated statement FAGEBREERERAKNEA
of cash flows for lease comprise the following: MEE EI’J SHEBEENTE

18 -

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FETT
Within operating cash flows BREERERE 197 186
Within financing cash flows BREERERE 1,304 1,512
1,501 1,698

These amounts relate to the following: ZECHHENTSEBEAR:
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Lease rental paid ENHEERS 1,501 1,698
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2011, Suncorp
Industrial Limited (in liquidation) (“SIL"), a former
subsidiary of the Company, through its solicitors
served on two wholly-owned, inactive subsidiaries
of the Company (namely, Mondial Communications
Limited ("MCL") and Suncorp Communications
Limited (“SCL")), statutory demands for repayment
of an amount of HK$91,177,872 allegedly due from
MCL to SIL and an amount of HK$128,785,748
allegedly due from SCL to SIL. Both MCL and SCL
denied the indebtedness allegedly due from them to
SIL as claimed in the statutory demands. By Court
Order dated 1 June 2011, the liquidators of SIL were
sanctioned to take out legal proceedings in the name
and on behalf of SIL against the Company, MCL
and/or SCL. The Company had disposed of its entire
interest in MCL and SCL in April 2014. According
to Form 98, Notice to Creditors and Contributories
of Intention to Apply for Release, Destruction of
Books of Accounts and Documents and Dissolution
of the Company, dated on 8 November 2019, SIL has
submitted their application to finalise the liquidation,
and based on Written Resolutions of the Committee
of Inspection, the application has been approved.
No legal expenses has incurred during the reporting
period.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has no significant
contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting
period.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE

37.REE

REE-_ZT——%+=A
=+—HIEFE FREEER
~El (R8T ([FRrREX]
HARNRRZAMBAR) @A
HEMRAAAGMEEETE
Brz2EWBAR (ANBES
BAABRAG ([BERBEAM])
RFEBAERAA([HEE
M )EREEFTERKERE B
KEMATHRIA: EHEEERA
AMER FTEEZX 291,177,872
BT EIE - DA R IR TR T R B A e
¥ HEE ¥ 2128,785,7488 7T
RIE -BERBALKNMBENYG
BRAEACERERERMERE
BERBARTEBANENST
NREEXCEE-RERBAC
T——FXRXA—HZERDS
TEEEX 2R AEEUGTE
BEECZRERRERARG B
ERBAR/LHEBARELR
FERF - ARAER-_ZE—
FMAREERBERBAK
B2 ER - RIE R
AE_E-—NE+—ANBE#H
BEREARLNEABERBFER
AR E R X RBEEAR QA
BENFEBR FTHEEXER
REAFEZEEE RMBEREZ
BEEMEEABRR RFEDEN
N BEMETEELELRZE
)Eﬁo

fr E XA IREE N RS H
R AEEITEERIRAE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

39.

In addition to those related party transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with its related parties during the year:

Compensation of key management
personnel

Key management personnel are the directors of the
Company. The remuneration of key management
personnel during the year was as follows:

SR EER

Short-term benefits

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
31 March 2023.

r B B 05 R B R

T+ A=T-HLEEE

3B.HEALRS

Bk &7 & B 75 ¥k B A #8 5 BT
BZBREALR S REHRIN K
SEFNEREATNZ SN

N

= HEEREARRES -BE
ERFRZHEMMT :

/>

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHT

738 1,287
MERS BB ®RR

SEEOR T4 A

ST ARERBREEMES
M-
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Financial Summary

£

For the year ended 31 December

BZ+-HA=1t-HLEE

B TS L &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE-—T__—F+_A=+—HILLFE
RESULTS

Revenue Wz

Loss for the year AEEEBR

Attributable to: THALEMR:

Owners of the Company N/NSE 2N

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets BEE
Total liabilities reE
Net assets FEE

Equity attributable to owners of R E% B AFEMG
the Company s

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET TET THER
223,749 202,546 173,692 199,967 128,035
(24,842) (42,766) (70,107) (58,840) (57,354)
(24,842) (42,766) (70,107) (58,753) (56,992)
EERAEE
As at 31 December
Rt+t=-BA=+-H

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET TET TET TAERT
436,572 364,901 299,153 328,982 282,174
(96,853) (55,976) (44,121) (71,974) (78,965)
339,719 308,925 255,032 257,008 203,209
339,719 308,925 255,032 257,008 203,209
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FERHR AR

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED



	封面
	目錄
	董事報告
	管理層討論及分析
	公司資料
	董事及主要行政人員簡歷
	企業管治報告
	環境、 社會和管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要
	封底

